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Tēnā koutou
Kia pāorooro te mihi maioha nei ki ngā pae maunga huri 
noa i te Whanganui-ā-Tara. 

Kei te mihi te Tiamana me te Poari ki te Koromatua o 
Pōneke koutou ko ngā Kaikaunihera, ko ngā kaitautoko 
whānui o te Taraati nei. 

I Hōngongoi, i wehe atu te tētēkura o te Taraati i muri i 
ngā tau tekau mā tahi. Kia pai to whakatā pahake e Pat. 
Pērā i te whakataukī, e waimarie ai te Taraati, kua haere 
mai a Sarah Rusholme hei aratakina. Mauri ora. 

The Experience Wellington Board of Trustees. Back row: Peter Jackson, Peter Johnston. Front row: Jackie Lloyd (Chair), Jane Wrightson, Rachel Farrant. Absent: Diane Calvert
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Tēnā koutou,

I am sure many of you will be reflecting on a year 
that has been unlike any other. 

For Experience Wellington, this last year has also 
included the farewell of Chief Executive Pat Stuart, 
who has been with the organisation for over 12 
years and the welcome of our next Chief Executive, 
Dr Sarah Rusholme. 

Personally, and on behalf of the Board I would like 
to recognise and thank Pat for the significant role 
that she has played as Chief Executive. Her life has 
been one of service, and at Experience Wellington, 
that has been service to our city, our arts and 
cultural sectors, and service to our communities. 

Experience Wellington works with and touches 
the hearts of many diverse groups in Wellington, 
along with domestic and international visitors. 
Through her leadership, hundreds of thousands of 
people have experienced the Wellington we love. 

Experience Wellington evolved considerably 
under Pat’s tenure. When Pat took on the role of 
Chief Executive, a total of 30 exhibitions were 
hosted across our sites in the 2009 year, this now 
compares to over 550 events and programmes 
in the past year alone. Visitor numbers have also 
grown significantly - with around 550,000 visitors 
when Pat started in 2008 to over 770,000 visitors 
last year experiencing our offerings in person. 
The strong strategic focus on engaging with our 
community should only deepen as creative works 
continue specifically for the domestic market.

Pat’s leadership and stewardship have positioned 
Experience Wellington to withstand the 
unexpected. The focus on the health, safety 
and wellbeing of our staff and visitors, and the 
upgrading of our collection storage and business 
systems have made for a resilient organisation. 
Through lockdown, staff were able to connect 
with each other through vital systems from home 
and continue to innovate and switch to a digital 
approach offering creative content online for  
our audiences. 

As we farewelled Pat we welcomed  
Dr Sarah Rusholme as Chief Executive. Sarah  
has been a part of Experience Wellington for 
over a decade and for the last four years held 
the position of Director, Children & Young People 
Capital E Nōku Te Ao. 

We are delighted to have Sarah as our next 
Chief Executive. She brings passion, drive and 
energy and the desire to lead and further develop 
Experience Wellington’s role in our city, and I am 
looking forward to working with Sarah in her  
new position. 

Finally, I would like to thank our Board of Trustees 
for their support and steward-ship over the last 
year as well as acknowledge and thank the 
dedicated, creative and innovative team at 
Experience Wellington. Thank you for continuing 
the creation of remarkable art, culture and 
science experiences for our visitors.

Ngā mihi nui, 
Jackie Lloyd 
Heamana | Chair

Chair’s Overview
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Tā Mātou Tāpaetanga
Our Contribution to Wellington

Tēnā koutou,

The year ending 30 June 2020 will not be remembered for our performance or success, even 
though we continued to inspire our communities with world class innovative programming. 
Instead, it will be the memory of being stopped in our tracks when our Government 
announced its strategy to eliminate COVID-19. The immediate impact was surreal 
acknowledgement of a sudden, unseen threat that we knew would change our lives.

Before 22 March 2020 we were on track to achieve budget and performance targets. With 
78% of our annual visitation achieved and trading revenues at 90% of the annual target, we 
expected to achieve breakeven by the end of the financial year. 

With the ongoing support of our Principal Funder Wellington City Council, as well as  
Creative New Zealand, Ministry of Education and the Government’s wage subsidy, we have 
achieved a satisfactory year-end result of $44,000 deficit, and retained staffing levels which 
will enable us to rebound with fully open visitor experiences in 2020/2021. 

There is still plenty to celebrate and this annual report illustrates our commitment to our 
vision of Engaged Curious Communities and our strategic pou that commits us to deepening 
our engagement with audiences, Embracing Te Ao Māori and continuous improvement of 
our organisation.

Experience Wellington 19/20  
Greetings 

6

Pat Stuart, Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive

Back to Contents



Thank you to our wonderful Experience Wellington team who coped well 
with lockdown, finding new ways to do their work, and more importantly 
adapted their thinking about how to engage our communities. They 
produced entertaining programming and interesting, sometimes quirky, 
Wellington stories to entertain. Our efforts were supported by good 
business systems making communication and working online seamless. 
Staff wellbeing was prioritised during this period and we continue to 
see this as fundamental to our recovery and our future success.

Thank you to Mayor Foster and Wellington City Councillors for their 
ongoing support, as well as City Gallery Wellington Foundation and our 
many supporters including Wellington Community Trust and  
The Lion Foundation. Thank you to our suppliers who reduced rent or 
deferred payment during lockdown; gestures which are much appreciated.

Despite disruption, work has continued on the Wellington Museum 
Project and we now have completed concept designs. The earthquake 
strengthening work required for this 130-year-old Category 1 heritage 

building is now fully scoped. Unfortunately a number of other projects have 
been delayed, including a major international art exhibition at  
City Gallery, now proposed for 2022. The 10th Capital E National Arts 
Festival will now be staged in 2023, and we will be replacing next year’s 
festival with Creative Collider which will bring together Wellington’s creative 
sector and children and young people to spark ideas for future festivals. 

Our immediate focus, though, is on recovery. Like many organisations we 
have reassessed our financial forecasting for 2020/2021 to factor in the 
reality of COVID-19 impacts on business, with significantly lower visitation 
and the associated loss of trading revenue predicted. Our commitment 
to Wellington is enduring and our mission is to contribute to its recovery 
through remarkable art, culture and science experiences that generate 
vitality, for the city we love.

Ngā mihi nui, 
Pat Stuart 
Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive
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From our incoming 
Chief Executive
Tēnā koutou katoa,

It is a privilege to step into the role of  
Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive, following  
Pat Stuart’s impressive 12 year tenure at 
Experience Wellington. I am delighted to 
lead this fantastic organisation as we continue 
to create remarkable art, culture and science 
attractions that generate vitality, enriching the  
city we love.  

I have been part of the Experience Wellington 
whānau for over a decade and for the last four 
years I have had the honour of leading the 
creative Capital E team. I am immensely proud 
of the unique and diverse experiences that our 
six sites offer, and I find myself constantly in awe 
of the talent of our team, which you’ll be able to 
read more about in our review of 2019/2020. 

Experience Wellington has a powerful presence 
across the capital. The way we elevate and 
celebrate the city’s stories, creativity and taonga 

will play a transformative role as we rebound 
from COVID-19.   

Now’s the time to explore and be uplifted by 
homegrown talent, ideas, art and history - and to 
support the tourism industry of Aotearoa. Over 
the coming year you’ll hear about the projects 
we have planned that will showcase Wellington 
as the creative and cultural capital. 

Thank you to everyone who has supported 
Experience Wellington over the last year. We have 
loved having you visit or partner with us and look 
forward to welcoming you again soon to discover, 
explore, learn and be uplifted and inspired  
alongside us. 

Waiho i te toipoto kaua i te toiroa.

Ngā mihi nui,  
Dr Sarah Rusholme 
Tumu Whakarae | Chief Executive

Experience Wellington 19/20  
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This represents  
of our operating revenue.

Non-council revenue: $3.6 million

Trading 
$1,892,999

10%
growth  
in social 
media 
followers

Our Year at a Glance
43
te reo Māori 
classes 

delivered to staff 
across two course 
levels: Beginners 
and Next Steps

media 
mentions159

arrived, withQuasi

535,421
visitors

42,126
children & young people 
visited for a learning 
experience

232,000+
digital visitors

50,407
education learning 
hours – more than  
5 years in class!

Capital E
 — Thank you for your warm welcome to us on our first 

visit. So many activites on offer for the children's minds 
and bodies.

 — What an awesome experience and such a lovely staff 
member on the front desk that assisted me!

City Gallery
 — Fantastic atmosphere, extremely cathartic and tranquil. 

Engaging artwork!!

 — I always enjoy my visits to the gallery and think it's a 
wonderful place for locals and visitors to enjoy.

Space Place
 — Such a lot of wonderful complex information 

presented in a very easy to understand way 
and very interesting.

 — I appreciate how Māori culture was also tied 
into the exhibitions.

Wellington Museum
 — I like the appreciation and care paid to 

exhibiting both the tragic and the joyful.

 — A fantastic tour with a fantastic guide.

Cable Car Museum
 — I loved the old cable car with the outside seats.

 — The old Cable Car is the CEO of comfy.

Nairn Street Cottage
 — Fabulous knowledgable guide who was happy  

to answer all our questions. Thank you!

 — My family history is presented beautifully. Very 
touched that this space is preserved so beautifully.

Voice of our visitors

Contract 
$474,360

Fundraising 
$468,477

Wage subsidy 
$796,642

31.8%



Highlights of the year
We are proud of our achievements throughout this last year and the 
ongoing scale and growth of programmes and audiences reached. 

The re-staging of Suffrage in Stitches at 
Wellington Museum which involved more 
than 500 makers re-presenting the 1893 
Suffrage Petition through textile art.

Space Place celebrating the 
50th anniversary of the moon 
landing with Sheyne Tuffery’s 
exhibition Lunar Module.

Working on a new planetarium 
show telling the story of Pacific and 
European navigation which remains 
on track to open in June 2021.

The Capital E National Theatre for Children’s work with 
young people to bring their experiences and ideas of 
growing up in Aotearoa to audiences of their peers through 
the award winning 2019 version of Story Studio LIVE. 

Powered by Capital E, Maker Faire  
brought 50 makers, tinkerers and 
inventors to an audience of 6,000 at TSB 
Arena and under the Queens Wharf sails.

The installation of Ronnie van Hout’s 
sculpture Quasi on the roof of City Gallery 
Wellington, causing a media sensation 
and brought the world to Te Ngākau.

The NavigatorsMaker Faire 
Wellington

Lunar Module Quasi

Suffrage in Stitches Story Studio LIVE



Engaging with our audiences 
under COVID-19 lockdown
While COVID-19 has proven challenging, it has 
provided space and time for innovation and the 
development of new initiatives that work in the real 
world as well digitally.

Capital E
During lockdown, Capital E digitised the 
excitement from PlayHQ with Term Time Online 
videos. Whānau could watch a range of online 
activities from science to dance, crafts to music 
and more across social platforms. Capital E was 
able to reach an audience right across the country 
who were desperate for creative content to 
entertain tamariki. Positive feedback was received 
and the videos performed strongly with 361% 

increase on Facebook post reach. Our online 
offering continues to grow and provides a great 
source of content for parents and caregivers. 

City Gallery Wellington
COVID-19 presented City Gallery Wellington 
with an opportunity to explore new and exciting 
options for digital content. The development of 
art-based quizzes for social media engaged our 
audiences, covering Wellington sculpture art and 
art in movies. We also shared the secrets from 
behind the scenes of City Gallery – where does 
our artwork come from and how long it takes 
to install an exhibition as well as addressing 
rumours of a resident ghost. We livestreamed 
our first virtual event, City Gallery Book Club 
which focussed on books and movies about 
pandemics. The event was well attended and 

rebroadcast on Radio Active a few days later. 
Recording future events like this provides the 
opportunity to expand our audience reach.

Wellington Museum
The Battle of Manners Street, a riot between US 
servicemen and local Wellingtonians around the 
treatment of Māori, was first posted on the 3rd 
of April to coincide with the 77th anniversary 
of the battle. Later it was reposted during the 
Black Lives Matter discussion, with Wellington 
Museum bringing the important and sometimes 
uncomfortable stories from our past to the wider 
Wellington community. The post reached over 
129,000 people on Facebook alone, with huge 
engagement, it has been the most popular post 
in Wellington Museum’s social media history.

Capital E Term Time Online video City Gallery Book Club panel John Summers, Megan Dunn, Pip Adam, and Rosabel Tan Photo of US troops naer Oriental Bay, illustrating the Battle of Manners Street

Back to Our Year

COVID-19 Lockdown
Experience Wellington 19/20  12 Experience Wellington 19/2012



Ā Mātou Pou Rautaki
Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

We are committed to deepening our engagement with existing audiences 
and developing new audiences for our remarkable experiences.

At Experience Wellington we work for the city of Wellington and its people 
to create inspiring, stimulating art and culture experiences as well as sharing 
stories of our heritage. Our mahi provides immense social value for all ages and 
backgrounds. Our inclusive experiences promise an environment of creativity, 
learning and connectedness that enhances wellbeing and generates vitality.

Experience Wellington 19/20  13
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Back to Our Strategic Pou

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| Wellington Museum

Strategic Project:
Te Waka Huia o Ngā Taonga Tuku Iho  
Wellington Museum Project
The historic 1892 building, The Bond Store – 
a nationally significant Category 1 Heritage 
building, and home to Wellington Museum, is 
one of the oldest structures in the city and is 
an important reminder of Wellington’s past.

Museums play a vital role in the wellbeing 
of a city. They are a public civic place that 
provides a space to prompt discussion and 
provide a link to the region’s identity, past and 
future. We pride ourselves on being involved 
in activities that enhance people’s wellbeing. 

A project is underway to reshape and enhance 
the visitor experience within the Museum and 
deepen engagement with our community and 
to address urgent building works to improve 
the Bond Store’s earthquake resilience. 

The project is an investment in the city, providing 
Wellingtonians an enduring, inclusive, cultural 
treasure for years to come. We hope to begin 

building works midway through 2021, which are 
expected to take up to two years to complete.

While the building will be closed, the Museum 
will continue to ‘share the stories and objects 
of Wellington’ by connecting the community 
via pop-up experiences, outreach programmes, 
community-led initiatives as well as the utilisation 
of other Experience Wellington facilities. The 
development of new exhibitions will allow 
us to deepen and broaden our audience and 
offering, with mana whenua, Pasifika, youth 
and accessible communities as our focus. 

Once Wellington Museum reopens, visitors will 
find a place to have fun and be active, to discover 
and explore new ways to look at our changing 
city. With almost 130 years of history in the city 
of Wellington, this iconic building will continue 
its legacy as a place of inclusion that enhances 
the health and wellbeing of our visitors.

The Bond Store during the 1913 Waterfront Strike

Experience Wellington 19/20  14 Experience Wellington 19/2014



Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| City Gallery Wellington

Planning for City Gallery Wellington’s next 
high value, international art exhibition is well 
underway. The only New Zealand venue showing 
this important work and in partnership with two 
well-known and influential Australian institutions, 
this exhibition is a coup and a once in a lifetime 
opportunity for Wellington.

The pandemic has had an impact on the timing 
of the New Zealand exhibition with the dates 
moving out a year later than originally planned. 
The new timing of the exhibition provides a great 
opportunity as the city rebounds from the effects 
of COVID-19, bringing a theme of wellbeing and 
unity. Art nourishes our souls. It has magical 
properties and uplifts and transports our spirits. It 
fires our imaginations, sparking new ways to see 
the world and to think about how we occupy it. 

We are excited to present this remarkable 
exhibition and we look forward to sharing more 
about the artist and their work later this year.

Karen Walker speaking at Cindy Sherman, City Gallery Wellington November 2016. Photo by Mark Tantrum

Strategic Project:
High Profile Art at City Gallery Wellington

Back to Our Strategic Pou
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Suffrage  
in Stitches
546 makers, 300 metres, 500 fabrics, 27,000 individual hand stitches 
and two exhibitions. Suffrage in Stitches is the ambitious, community-
driven Wellington Museum project honouring the wāhine toa who 
pioneered the women’s rights movement of 1893 Aotearoa.

In collaboration with the up-cycling initiative Vinnies Re Sew,  
Wellington Museum turned a community engagement programme into 
a hugely successful textile exhibition. Reflecting the original petition’s 
number of pages, 546 individually designed fabric panels were created 
by members of the public. Professional artists, community groups and 
amateur sewing hobbyists across the country unravelled the personal 
stories behind 546 signatures.

Suffrage in Stitches first opened in Wellington Museum’s Flux gallery in 
August 2019. The exhibition was opened by Minister Carmel Sepuloni 
and attended by the Governor General. Over 50,000 people visited the 
works during the month-long installation.

Back by popular demand, Suffrage in Stitches returned to  
Wellington Museum in December 2019 and ran until April 2020. 
Museums Wellington’s Exhibition team enhanced the display and 
created online content from Te Puna Mātauranga o Aotearoa  
National Library of New Zealand to accompany the works.

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| Wellington Museum

Back to Our Strategic Pou
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We thank Vinnies Re Sew, particularly  
Caroline O’Reilly and her team of volunteers, for 
partnering with Wellington Museum to bring this 
important exhibition to thousands of visitors over 
the last year.

Thank you to Carolina Angelica Prato-Casanova 
of Natural Macro Photography, with the help of 
equipment loaned by Woolf Photography and  
Cut the Mustard, who kindly donated hundreds 
of hours of time to photograph and document the 
individual panels for our website, developed to 
showcase our history through the fabric panels.

What started as a collective exhibition emerged 
as a sharing of history and connection of 
people. Makers discovered a love of history, 
new friendships and a renewed appreciation for 
those before them. Every contribution, every 
conversation and every stitch became a thread 
woven into the rich tapestry that is New Zealand 
history.

| Wellington Museum
Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Back to Our Strategic Pou
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Quasi
It was a strange sight. One early August morning in the normally quiet  
Te Ngākau Square, a giant, pink hand, lifted by a helicopter, rose above 
the Wellington skyline. Quasi had arrived.

In partnership with the Wellington Sculpture Trust, City Gallery Wellington 
migrated Quasi north from his home on the roof of the Christchurch  
Art Gallery. Now he presides over Wellington, atop City Gallery. 

Quasi is a nod to Quasimodo, the deformed bell ringer in The Hunchback 
of Notre-Dame who is misshapen and misunderstood — very similar to 
the infamous Quasi. Artist Ronnie van Hout says “Quasi represents the 
history of the outsider, the freak, the artist. Like Quasimodo, he is not a 
real monster, but a misunderstood abject self who is denied a name, who 
bears only a description — as misshapen.”

Van Hout asks “How much could we love a detached hand that has taken 
on a life of its own?” Whether you love him or hate him, Quasi brings forth 
a response from all who fall under his gaze. Images of Quasi on top of  
City Gallery made a splash around the world and featured in news items 
on BBC News, The Guardian, The Independent, Daily Mail, Time, CNN, 
New York Post, and on Stephen Colbert’s popular tour of New Zealand.  
Locally, he lit up media with highlights in The Dominion Post,  
New Zealand Herald, Stuff, The Spinoff and many others.  

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Ronnie van Hout: Quasi City Gallery Wellington 2019 

| City Gallery Wellington

Back to We Change Lives
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Ronnie van Hout: Quasi City Gallery Wellington 2019 

Much discussion is had online regarding Quasi; multiple Tinder 
accounts use his image, emojis were developed, memes created,  
offers to knit hand warmers were made, and a steady stream of  
people visited Te Ngākau Civic Square to take a photo. 

Quasi lends a hand to the partnership of City Gallery Wellington 
and the Wellington Sculpture Trust in bringing attention back 
to Te Ngākau Civic Square. The artwork stands ominously 
above the surrounding construction, foreshadowing 
the city square’s return to life and vibrancy.

Quasi is a joint project with Wellington Sculpture Trust and  
City Gallery Wellington, with support from Wellington City Council, 
Wellington Community Trust, and Richard Burrell.

| City Gallery Wellington

Ronnie van Hout: Quasi City Gallery Wellington 2019 

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Back to We Change Lives
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Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Maker Faire
2019
Make, create and celebrate! Taking place all over the world, 
Maker Faire events are dedicated to Makers of all kinds. Artists, 
jewellers, cosplayers, engineers, musicians and more come 
together for the greatest show and tell on Earth.

Capital E is the first and only New Zealand organisation to 
partner with Make Community and deliver the popular event. 
Our second Maker Faire took place in Shed 6 in October and 
attracted over 6,000 creative enthusiasts.

The whānau-friendly showcase of creativity and resourcefulness 
was teeming with curious crafts and Kiwi ingenuity. Matchstick 
sculptures, robot battles, handmade soap, 3D printing and a 
life-size kinetic Lego man were among the amazing mahi of 
the 55 participating creators. Maker Faire Wellington offers 
an engaging ‘behind the scenes’ experience for children and 
their families. Professional crafters shared their process and 
techniques with anyone interested in learning more.

Capital E’s Creative Producer of Public Programmes,  
Karen Carey, reflected on the event saying, “we are passionate  
about expressing and igniting creativity at Capital E and  
Maker Faire is all about getting creative, thinking outside 

Maker Faire 2019. Photo by Justine Hall

| Capital E

Back to We Change Lives
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the box, and inspiring people of all ages 
to become Makers themselves. This is 
the second year we produced the festival 
and we’re inspired seeing all the new and 
returning makers share their ideas, skills 
and projects so generously. Maker Faire 
Wellington provided amazing opportunities 
for hands on engagement and inter-
generational learning.”

Local and national news covered our festival 
with 28 media pieces in total. Notably, Stuff’s 
“Kea Kids News” segment highlighted the 
event, including an interview with John Espin 
from Stupid Fighting Robots and reached an 
incredible 4,052,518 views.

We are privileged to be have been a part of 
the Make Community. As the children’s centre 
for all things creative, we love providing 
opportunities for young people to learn, grow 
and explore their creative potential.

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Maker Faire 2019. Photo by Justine Hall

| Capital E

Back to We Change Lives
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Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| City Gallery Wellington

Split Level 
Viewfinder: 
Theo Schoon and  
New Zealand Art
City Gallery Wellington challenged audiences with a contentious 
exhibition Split Level Viewfinder: Theo Schoon and New Zealand Art. 
In curating the exhibition, Aaron Lister of City Gallery and art historian 
Damian Skinner asked viewers to think critically about Theo Schoon’s 
place in the art history of Aotearoa.

The Dutch-New Zealand artist worked across and between cultures 
and contexts. Working with paint, photography, ceramics and jade 
carvings, the artist adopted conventions of Māori art. While Schoon 
interacted with and worked alongside tangata whenua, his work is now 
considered appropriated and culturally presumptuous.

Split Level Viewfinder opened in July and immediately attracted 
controversary. Calling the exhibition racist and harmful, a group of art 
history students occupied the gallery space one Thursday evening. 

Split Level Viewfinder: Theo Schoon and New Zealand Art, City Gallery Wellington, 2019

Back to We Change Lives
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| City Gallery Wellington

City Gallery anticipated the provocative exhibition would invite 
debate. In response to the criticism, Director Elizabeth Caldwell 
said, “one of the exhibition’s aims is to introduce new generations 
to this work, the issues it carries, and its role in our art history.” For 
Caldwell, the “protest was not unexpected, given protests happening 
elsewhere in the art world. This exhibition opens up the very issues 
being raised, putting them front and centre.” Neglecting our art 
history’s problematic past would be synonymous with suggesting 
these issues never existed.

A series of public programmes were devised to accompany the 
exhibition to help visitors learn about and understand the topics it 
explored. The opening weekend talks, In Conversation with Theo 
Schoon, examined the works from a range of perspectives and 
discussed the artist’s significance in New Zealand’s recent art history.

City Gallery continues to be a place for research, display and debate 
about art and its importance in Aotearoa. The exhibition closed 
in early November and toured to Te Uru Waitākere Contemporary 
Gallery, where the conversation continued.

Thank you to the City Gallery Wellington Foundation,  
Auckland Art Gallery Toi o Tāmaki, the Schoon Estate, and  
The Fletcher Trust for supporting this thought-provoking exhibition.

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Split Level Viewfinder: Theo Schoon and New Zealand Art, City Gallery Wellington, 2019

Back to We Change Lives
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Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Mr McGee and
the Biting Flea
As the national leader in live performance for children and  
young people, Capital E aims to create life-long connections 
to the arts through positive early experiences.

International research has found that experiencing live theatre 
at a young age promises a wide range of benefits including 
boosting literacy and vocabulary, encouraging communication, 
developing emotional intelligence and the courage to explore 
difficult subjects.

In 2019, Capital E’s National Theatre for Children presented 
Patch Theatre Companies show, Mr McGee and The Biting Flea. 
This brought New Zealand children’s author Pamela Allen’s 
well-loved stories to life. The show was performed in 22 centres 
across the country to almost 10,000 children aged 2-8 years old. 
For many, Mr McGee was their first theatre experience.  
Pamela Allen’s quirky characters captured the children’s 
attention with absurd tales of greedy kings, lost ducklings and 
elusive monsters!

Access to the arts varies widely between areas, and children 
in many communities face barriers that significantly limit their 
opportunities to engage with professional arts experiences.

Mr McGee 2019. Photo by Stephen A’Court

| Capital E

Back to We Change Lives
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Teachers highlight transport and ticket costs as 
major factors preventing children from attending 
high-quality performances. We fundraise to heavily 
subsidise ticket prices so that early childhood 
centres and schools across the country can 
afford to experience theatre in a professional 
setting. Without fundraising, we would have to 
charge approximately $35-$40 per person to 
cover production and tour costs. Last year our 
dedicated fundraising team made it possible 
to sell our junior production tickets at $9 per 
person with every 10th person free of charge.

The 2019 Mr McGee season impressed 
teachers and students alike. Teachers’ 
feedback consistently mentioned how 
engaged the children were with the show. 

Waipu Primary School of Northland shared 
their experience saying “Very enjoyable 
show this year. My children know many of 
the Pamela Allen stories, and enjoyed seeing 
them come to life. Great set, and portrayal of 
the characters.” A student from Auckland’s 
Birkenhead Playcentre was quoted in exclaiming 
“It was funny, Miss. Can we go again?”

Theatre inspires young minds in 
ways the classroom cannot. We will 
continue to make the benefits of art 
available to all corners of Aotearoa.

Mr McGee 2019. Photos by Stephen A’Court

| Capital E
Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
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Eavesdropping

City Gallery’s spring exhibition invited Wellington to listen up. 
Eavesdropping, curated by Joel Stern of Liquid Architecture and 
James Parker of Melbourne Law School, assembled 13 works by eight 
contemporary artists and collectives exploring the personal, legal and 
ethical consequences of eavesdropping. 

Chief Curator Robert Leonard discovered Eavesdropping’s first iteration 
at the Ian Potter Museum of Art in Melbourne in 2018. Our partnerships 
with Creative Victoria, Australia Council for the Arts, Massey University 
and City Gallery Wellington Foundation made it possible to bring the 
multimedia exhibition to our capital city.

As the centre of New Zealand government, Wellington offered the ideal 
backdrop to examine the politics of listening in and listening back.
Oval Office audiotapes from the Nixon era, intimate Manus Island 
conversations and visual representations of sonic evidence were featured 
among the interactive exhibits. 

City Gallery’s public programmes team won an Experience Wellington 
Changing Lives award for their impressive selection of complementary 
events. Artist Hado Afshar and human rights activist Murdoch Stephens 

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| City Gallery Wellington

Susan Schuppli Listening to Answering Machines 2015
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| City Gallery Wellington

led a discussion with unannounced guest Behrouz 
Boochani in the Gallery’s Auditorium. Behrouz, 
the award-winning writer and Manus Island 
detainee, unexpectedly arrived in New Zealand 
just three days before the event. After screening a 
section of Hoda’s film Remain, the trio discussed 
the fabrication and suppression of identity, 
freedom and how art and literature capture things 
journalism cannot.

In a special LitCrawl taster session, in collaboration 
with Claire Mabey of Verb Wellington, City Gallery 
hosted a writer’s response to Eavesdropping. The 
event took place during the Tuatara Open Late 
in October and drew an audience of over 300.  
Novelists Annaleese Jochems and 
Catherine Robertson and poets Nikki Lee 
Birdsey and Ruby Solly shared their new 
works inspired by sonic surveillance.

City Gallery also published Eavesdropping: A 
Reader to accompany the exhibition. Much 
like the exhibition, the publication boasts an 
eclectic collection of essays, interviews and art.

Our curators and public programme designers 
work together to deliver experiences that 
articulate and amplify the human stories inherent 
in contemporary art. City Gallery continues 
to stand as the academic sounding board for 
the art, philosophy and politics of today.

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Susan Schuppli The Missing 18½ Minutes 2018
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Moon Landing
50th Anniversary

On 20 July 1969, the Eagle module of Apollo 11 landed on the Sea of Tranquillity’s 
edge and Neil Armstrong made history in becoming the first person to walk 
on the Moon. Space Place celebrated 50 years since NASA’s incredible 
achievement with a range of events offering a Wellington perspective.

On the Moon landing anniversary, Space Place held a panel discussion focusing 
on the mission’s impact and significance. Our Senior Science Communicator, 
Haritina Mogoșanu, invited a range of experts and enthusiasts to reflect on 
the historic day. Guests included former NZ Spaceflight Association Lead 
David Maclennan, Science Media Centre Director Dacia Herbulock, Director 
of the New Zealand Astrobiology Network Samuel Leske, Victoria University 
Space Association students, former astronomy educator at Carter Observatory 
Frank Andrews and award-winning music producer Rhian Sheehan.

Rhian Sheehan composed the music for CAPCOM Go: The Apollo Story, a new 
planetarium show launched in July. The immersive short film showcases the 
Apollo mission and the dedicated individuals who dared to make the journey 
possible. Young and old, viewers always leave having learned something new.

CAPCOM GO: The Apollo Story 

| Space Place
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During his three-month residence at Thomas 
King Observatory, artist Sheyne Tuffery exhibited 
Lunar Module. The mixed media series conveys 
the complexities of Apollo and the preliminary 
missions of Mercury and Gemini. The works also 
explore Wellington’s reaction to the major event.

Using Wellington landscapes as backgrounds, 
Tuffery experimented with paper, paint and 
stereoscopic motion-graphic animation. The 
layered works paid tribute to the dangerous 
expedition and inspired visitors to conduct their 
own research into the wild space journey.

Lunar Module artworks by Sheyne Tuffery

| Space Place

Sci-Fi Sunday complemented Space Place’s 
celestial celebration. During July, the planetarium 
screened two films based on the epic mission: 
Oscar-winning First Man (2018) and Australian  
sci-fi comedy The Dish (2000).

We are looking forward to another 
year of inspiring the next generation 
of stargazers and space explorers one 
small step or giant leap at a time. 

Back to We Change Lives
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Gallery Babes,  
City Gallery Seniors  
& Tuatara Open Late
With our constant rotation of exhibition tours, artist talks, live performances and panel 
discussions, there are always fresh and exciting ways to explore contemporary art. At  
City Gallery Wellington, art is for everyone. Our regular and free public programmes are 
tailored to the needs of new families, the elderly and underrepresented communities.

Gallery Babes makes space for new parents to enjoy an intimate art tour with their under-
ones. Public Programmes Coordinator Rachel Fox and Visitor Services Host Graham Frost 
lovingly guide participants through the world of contemporary art. Our popular whānau-
friendly tours book out months in advance. Overall, 327 parents made bookings for last 
year’s line-up. 

Inciting laughter and learning, Gallery Babes is a social programme where connections are 
made. During a tour of Split Level View Finder in August, one mother whose family live 
overseas, discovered that another Gallery Babes attendee lived on the same street as her. 
The pair swapped details and arranged to support each other with their childcare.

Similarly, City Gallery Seniors provides space for older community members to experience 
modern art in a safe and social environment. Over 60 senior citizens attended our tours 
last year. A Probus member thanked Rachel for her hospitality during the group’s tour in 
September saying, “Your guidance gave so much more depth to Theo Schoon’s creativity.”

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| City Gallery Wellington

Image caption

City Gallery Senior Tour, 2019. Photo by Elias Rodriguez & Mark Tantrum
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Rachel increases the Gallery’s inclusivity with her 
outreach programmes. In March, Rachel hosted a 
free tour for migrants and former refugees living 
in Wellington. The City Central English Language 
Group were invited to a private tour of Unravelled 
and Elisabeth Pointon’s What Goes Up. An article 
on the English Language Partners NZ website 
shared the group’s experience. The exhibitions 
stimulated discussion about the different ways to 
create, view and display art. The huge one-word 
works of Elisabeth Pointon inspired their next 
lesson where students explored synonyms for and 
the meaning behind her ‘outstanding’ textiles.

Sponsored by Tuatara Breweries, City Gallery’s 
Open Late celebrates art, music and film unlike 
anywhere else. Occurring on the first Thursday 
of the month, our free event promises an 
ever-changing line up of exciting experiences. 
From live performances, tours, RadioActive 
DJs and artist talks, there’s something for 
everyone. And it wouldn’t be a Wellington city 
event without an incredible selection of food 
and drink. Food trucks and our onsite bar 
accompany the buzz of late-night event.

Tuatara Open Late draws an average of 340 
visitors per event. Our December 2019 Open 
Late screened Věra Chytilová: Daisies and 
showcased psychedelic pop Wellington band 
Glass Vaults to an audience of over 500.

Our public programmes team craft and deliver 
engaging and inclusive events with care. 
We are looking forward to another year of 
celebrating art with the diverse communities 
of Wellington that make our city so vibrant.

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Tuatara Open Late December 2019. Photos by Elias Rodriguez & Mark Tantrum

| City Gallery Wellington

Gallery Babes August 2019. Photo by Elias Rodriguez & Mark Tantrum Tuatara Open Late November 2019
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Experience Wellington is fortunate to work 
with enthusiastic and talented educators. Our 
education teams provide a variety of enriching 
experiences meeting the needs of teachers and 
students across the country. We curate popular 
LEOTC programmes at all of our sites and  
Capital E’s National Theatre for Children tours  
two live performances annually.

Overall, our education programmes, National 
Theatre for Children tours and Te Kuia me 
te Pungawerewere tour (in partnership with 
Taki Rua), reached 42,126 children and young 
people from ages 2-16. We achieved an 
incredible combined total of 50,407 learning 
hours. That’s more than five years in class!

From exploring the mysteries of outer-space to 
sharing local heritage stories, no day is ever the 
same for our Museums Wellington educators. 
Across all Museums Wellington sites, the team 
reached 7,721 children from 149 schools and 

early childhood centres. Museum Highlights 
is their most popular tour with 1,365 children 
attending during July and December 2019.

Led by Senior Educator Alison Woollard, the team 
is made up of some of Experience Wellington’s 
newest staff. Lockdown was a challenge the team 
faced apart while staying connected digitally 
and they devised content for teachers and 
students while socially distanced. Ministry of 
Education Advisor Terina Tairea congratulated 
Museums Wellington of the mahi outlined in 
their six-monthly report noting the amount of 
time we invested “to support local curriculum 
needs as well as the needs of Māori learners.”

During lockdown, Museums Wellington produced 
Learning in your Living Room, a six-part activity 
resource that encouraged children to celebrate 
the taonga in their home. The idea came from 
A Place Called Home, a collaborative project 
between our educators and Corinna School.

Ongoing relationships with local schools are 
important. City Gallery Educators Helen Lloyd 
and Claire Hopkins teamed up with artist Ruth 
Robertson Taylor to deliver a unique and rewarding 
art experience for Wainuiomata High School in 
November. Ruth recently completed the Te Ngākau 
Civic Square mural across from the gallery. The 
mural, Weaving Hope, commemorates those 
lost in the 2019 Christchurch mosque attack.

Made possible with funding from City Gallery 
Wellington Foundation, we provided transport 
for Wainuiomata High School students to 
attend a free bespoke stencil art workshop 
led by Ruth and our educators at the Gallery. 
The classeswere able to keep stencils from the 
workshop and made their own mural honouring 
kaitiakitanga and sustainable living.

Capital E’s MediaLab and OnTV achieved a 
consistently high attendance rate with over 7,000 
children experiencing their LEOTC programmes.

The OnTV programmes at Capital E encourages 
children to think creatively and work in a 
team. Newscast, where children devise and 
record their own live news show, is our most 
popular programme with over 1,000 students 
taking on the challenge this financial year.

Capital E’s Digital Education Team was recognised 
as one of three providers for the Toloa Kenese 

Learning Experiences
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programme. At the Porirua Toloa Awards ceremony 
in February, the Minister for Pacific Peoples,  
Aupito William Sio, congratulated those champion-
ing greater Pacific participation in STEM pro-
grammes. Through the initiative, Capital E shared 
their expertise with Pacific students from Porirua.

The National Theatre for Children shows performed 
close to 20,000 tamariki and rangatahi around 
the country. For many children it meant their first 
time experiencing a high-quality live performance. 
The theatre team brings productions into schools 
and heavily subsidised tickets make the magic of 
theatre accessible to more children. Our educators 
welcome another year in breaking the barriers 
restricting tamariki and rangatahi from accessing 
transformative knowledge and experiences.

Making education engaging and accessible is at 
the heart of what our educators do. Our Education 
teams feel privileged to work with children and 
witness the magical moments where connections 
are made and young minds are inspired. 

Wear Your Imagination at Capital E, October 2019

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
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Museums Wellington continues to strengthen 
our collection to reflect Wellington’s rich history.  
Our collection received 25 new acquisitions, 13 of 
these consist of more than one item. Significant 
collections were acquired from Capital Performing 
Arts Society, June & Rex Manning, the estate of 
Simon Manchester and Wellington City Archives.

This dress, profiled on social media recently, was 
made by Mavis Chun of Wellington in the 1950s 
and is part of Wellington Museum’s collections. 
After her parents passed away in the late 1940s, 
Mavis had to put aside her own ambitions to 
take care of her nine youngest siblings. Her 
brother Stan recalls they were “a rascally and 
undisciplined bunch” whom Mavis had to rule with 
an iron fist!

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives
| Wellington Museum

Our Collections

The Wellington City Archives collection includes 
Mayor John G. W. Aitken’s Key to the City, which 
was presented to him at the opening of Wellington 
Town Hall in 1904. Made by respected jeweller 
Frank Grady, the gold and pounamu ceremonial 
key is the collection highlight of the year.

In another stand out acquisition, Mercury Energy 
kindly donated a Mark XIV British contact mine, 
now converted to a buoy. The mine was one of 
several used to defend Wellington harbour during 
World War II and later converted for use as a buoy 
in the Central North Island hydro scheme.

Here is Mavis in a different dress, but wearing a necklace that is also in Wellington Museum’s collection

Dress made by Mavis Chun of Wellington
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We Change Lives
Key Results

Our Strategic Pou: We Change Lives

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual Notes
Achieved:  

Total 770,320 visits.
Total visits: 

665,500 are achieved.
Not Achieved:  

Total 535,421 visits.
From late March physical 
visitation has been significantly 
negatively impacted as a result 
of COVID-19. This includes 
border closures, no international 
visitors, limited domestic 
tourists and site closures.

City Gallery Wellington 153,676 150,000 111,365

Wellington Museum 132,953 130,000 100,165

Capital E1 137,015 70,500 86,821

Cable Car Museum 288,889 256,000 192,915

Space Place 55,683 57,000 43,449

Nairn Street Cottage 2,104 2,000 706

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual Notes

City Gallery Wellington 86% Not Achieved 90% 85% Not Achieved Quality of visit has been affected 
by reduced access to City Gallery. 

The popularity of the Cable Car 
Museum particularly during 
the peak tourism season 
affected the quality of visit.

Wellington Museum 93% Achieved 90% 92% Achieved

Capital E 95% Achieved 90% 93% Achieved

Cable Car Museum 84% Not Achieved 90% 78% Not Achieved

Space Place 91% Achieved 90% 91% Achieved

Nairn Street Cottage 96% Achieved 90% 98% Achieved

1 The biennial Capital E National Arts Festival was held in 2018-19. Capital E Visitation figures includes the Hannah Playhouse.

Physical Visitation

Quality of Visit
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Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: 80,208 children & young people 

 visited for a learning experience.
40,250 children & young people  
visited for a learning experience.

Achieved: 42,126 children & young people 
visited for a learning experience.

City Gallery Wellington 4,038 4,500 2,410

Wellington Museum3 5,627 7,000 3,136

Capital E4 64,422 20,500 31,995

Space Place 6,121 8,250 4,585

2 The number of students as part of a booked group visiting us for learning experiences. The delivery of LEOTC is part-funded by the Ministry of Education.
3 Museums Wellington includes Wellington Museum, Cable Car Museum and Nairn Street Cottage. It excludes Space Place which is reported separately.
4 The biennial Capital E National Arts Festival was held in 2018-19. Capital E’s figures includes the Hannah Playhouse.

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: Total 274,093  

unique visits.
Total unique visits: 216,500  

to web/mobile sites are achieved.
Achieved: Total 232,013  

unique visits.

City Gallery Wellington 87,922 75,000 86,579

Museums Wellington 140,646 96,000 110,444

Capital E 45,525 45,500 34,990

Children & Young People Visiting for LEOTC2

Virtual Visitation

Back to We Change Lives

Experience Wellington 19/20  36 Experience Wellington 19/2036



5 Museums Wellington includes Wellington Museum, Cable Car Museum and Nairn Street Cottage. It excludes Space Place which has its own social media profile.
6 New to Collection means: Commissions, acquisitions or donations of an item or a collection of items that have been accessioned into the collection. Refer to page 34 for details of this year’s acquisitions.
7 Collection Assessment means: The number of items (individual or type e.g. lifebuoys) that are reviewed for retention or disposal.
8 Collection Accessibility means: The % of the Collection that is on display, on loan, used for research purposes or accessed through other mediums such as online.

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual

New to Collection6 26 Not Achieved 100 25 Not Achieved

Collection Assessment7 2,044 Achieved 1,000 2,189 Achieved

Collection Accessibility8 6.04% Not Achieved 10% 7% Not Achieved

Collection Development

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: 68,059 Facebook friends 
and Instagram & Twitter followers

65,000 Facebook friends and Instagram 
& Twitter followers are achieved

Achieved: 74,871 Facebook friends 
and Instagram & Twitter followers

City Gallery Wellington 37,923 35,000 41,078

Museums Wellington5 12,218 12,000 14,387

Capital E 8,040 8,000 9,123

Space Place 9,878 10,000 10,283

Social Media Profile
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Ā Mātou Pou Rautaki
Our Strategic Pou:  
Embracing Te Ao Māori 

Our Strategic Pou

We acknowledge tangata whenua as kaitiaki and Te Tiriti o Waitangi. We strive 
to reflect the values of te ao Māori in our work and in what our audiences see, 
feel and experience. 

As a national leader in the arts and cultural sector, Experience Wellington aims 
to represent an authentic Māori dimension at all organisation levels Embracing 
Te Ao Māori uplifts the mana of the stories we tell and connections we make. 

Ko koe ki tēnā, ko ahau ki tēnei kīwai o te kete — you at that and I at this 
handle of the basket.

The Attic, Wellington Museum
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Space Place shares stories of New Zealand’s history through the stars. The 
night sky maps our past and guides us towards the future. Using radically 
different techniques, our nation’s first people and European settlers both 
relied on the science of stars to navigate towards their new home. 

The Navigators is an ambitious strategic project currently in development. 
Made possible by Lottery’s Tuia 250 grant awarded to Museums Wellington  
in 2019, the project draws on our nation’s dual voyaging heritage. 

The Navigators is a 25-minute planetarium film comparing voyaging 
traditions through a series of interviews with astronomy experts and 
Pasifika voyaging knowledge-holders. The strategic project benefits include 
increasing dialogue between mātauranga Māori and science communities 
and the opportunity to present both sides of Aotearoa voyaging history with 
mana, authority and meaning. 

Engagement with key experts ensure our production offers a balanced 
understanding and appreciation of maritime and celestial knowledge across 
our founding cultures. Aotearoa Master Navigator Jack Thatcher has agreed 
to be the project’s lead subject matter expert in waka kaupapa. 

We have also engaged with individuals from key organisations including 
WellingtonNZ, Wellington City Council, New Zealand Astrobiology Network, 
NASA, ESA, and Auckland Museum. 

Our Strategic Pou: Embracing Te Ao Māori

Between April 2019 and March 2020, we completed three critical mile- 
stones in the research and design development stages. First, we appointed 
Muesums Wellington representatives for the project’s key roles: Brett Mason 
as the Project Sponsor, Anton Carter as the Executive Producer,  
Haritina Mogosanu as Content Advisor, Annie Mercer as Project Coordinator 
and John Dow as Project Manager (external contractor). 

Secondly, we developed six external contracts for the production phase. 
These contracts included roles for script development, film treatment, 
graphic design and for a tikanga cultural advisor. 

For the third milestone, The Navigators development team attended four 
one-day wānanga and workshops hosted at Wellington Museums and  
Space Place. Each wānanga was rich with knowledge integral to the project’s 
success. The first and second wānanga focused on Pasifika navigation 
techniques and early European voyaging technology. Our core production 
team explored storytelling techniques in a film treatment wānanga. In the 
final workshop our production team focussed on script development. 

We are so thankful to all contributing to The Navigators project. We look 
forward to premiering the film in the new year, sharing the knowledge 
gathered and enabling our visitors to see the world through the eyes of  
their ancestors.

| Space Place

Strategic Project:
The Navigators
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Capital E is home to the National Theatre for Children. Our award-
winning theatre team produce consistently high-quality productions 
made for, by, with and between the tamariki and rangatahi of Aotearoa.

In partnership with CreativeNZ we delivered the second iteration of Story 
Studio Live, an innovative theatrical experience for young people. In 2019, 
the show was devised from storytelling workshops held by Capital E’s 
theatre team with students aged 11-13 from several Wellington schools. 
Students explored themes of belonging, cultural identity and embracing 
te reo Māori through a range of media. Poetry, karakia, haka, rap, 
illustration and letters were used by students to articulate what ‘home’ 
means to them.

Our creative team combined these experiences to form the show’s 
episodic narrative. The live radio-style play resulted in an engaging and 
sometimes confronting examination of New Zealand’s cultural history, 
present and future through the lens of high school students.

The indigenous language of Aotearoa was celebrated on stage 
with actor Neenah Dekkers-Reihana retelling the legend of 
Hineahuone, the creator of people, entirely in te reo Māori. 

Truths about Captain Cook’s arrival were highlighted in a movie 

Story Studio
LIVE 2019

| Capital E

Story Studio LIVE 2019 cast Hannah Kelly, Neenah Dekkers-Reihana and Sepe Mua’au
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trailer section and a game show style segment 
questioned contestants’ identities in How Samoan 
Are You? The interactive parts of the show saw 
“DJ Mauri Ora” asking children in the audience 
the pātai of the day: Is Aotearoa a fair place? What 
do you like? What would you change? Jo Hodgson 
of Theatreview praised the show’s challenging 
conversations and called Story Studio Live 
“an important piece of theatre... the messages 
within are deep, important and heartfelt.”

At the 2019 Wellington Theatre Awards, Capital E 
won the Excellence Award for Theatre for Young 
Audiences. The creative team was also nominated 
for Excellence Award for Theatre for Social 
Change, and crew member Thomas Lambert was 
nominated for Sound Designer of the Year.

The show’s success is not only measured in 
awards but in how many students we were able to 
reach. Heavily subsidising tickets and performing 

in schools made our tour very accessible. 
Nationally, Story Studio Live 2019 performed to 
100 schools and one home education network. 
Overall, the tour reached over 15,000 audience 
members and for many, Story Studio Live 
would have been their first professional theatre 
experience.

Over a third of schools involved had not 
experienced a Capital E production before and 
87% of these schools were decile six or below. 
Over 50% were decile three or below.

Making accessible, meaningful content is at 
the heart of what we do. Our creative team is 
proud to have made a platform for our youth to 
express what is important to them. The third  
Story Studio Live production is currently in 
development and we look forward to inspiring 
more future creators, doers and leaders.

| Capital E

Story Studio LIVE 2019 at Te Papa. Photos by Neil Price
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As leaders in Wellington’s cultural sector, Experience 
Wellington has the responsibility and privilege of including an 
authentic Māori dimension at all organisation levels and visitor 
experiences. Te Rōpū Mahi Tiriti makes this possible. 

Led by Heamana | Chair Helen Lloyd, Te Rōpū Mahi Tiriti is the 
work group championing the embodiment of te ao Māori across 
all of our sites. Their efforts are reflected in our organisation’s 
values, tangible resources and everyday moments that 
celebrate our bicultural identity.

In 2019, after the culmination of much hard mahi, the Board 
of Trustees endorsed Embracing Te Ao Māori to stand as 
the central strategic pou for Experience Wellington’s 10-year 
strategic plan.

The work group also made te reo Māori lessons available for 
staff during work hours for a second consecutive year. Taking 
place in October 2019 and February 2020, these popular lessons 
were delivered by the inimitable Joan Costello. The courses 
gave staff confidence to greet each other in te reo Māori and 
explore more complicated sentence structures and concepts, 
relating to tikanga.

Our Strategic Pou: Embracing Te Ao Māori

Te Rōpū  
Mahi Tiriti

Recreating how Māui slowed the sun at Space Place
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Lockdown unfortunately prevented Experience Wellington staff from 
attending their annual three day wānanga at Hongoeka Marae, run by 
Victoria University of Wellington Museum & Heritage Studies. It is hoped to 
reschedule a professional development wānanga for later this year, supported 
by Te Ropu Mahi Tiriti.

In early 2020 Wiremu Chrisp, Wellington Museum Kaitaki Manuhiri I Visitor 
Services Host translated all Experience Wellington job titles in te reo Māori. In 
one example, Visitor Services Host has been translated to “Kaitiaki Manuhiri” 
which means “someone who looks after our visitors.” The translations were 
important to Wiremu and Te Rōpū Mahi Tiriti as they not only visually 
Embrace Te Ao Māori but better reflect the Māori values, like manaakitanga, 
inherent in our staff’s mahi.

Te Rōpū Mahi Tiriti are excited to share the projects and resources that are 
currently in development. We look forward to another year of furthering our 
understanding of, and implementing te ao Māori.

Ma whero ma pango ka oti ai te mahi – When working together, 
we can achieve our goals.

Our Strategic Pou: Embracing Te Ao Māori

Artwork by Sean Duffel, Wellington Museum
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Te Reo Māori
Lessons
Experience Wellington’s Te Rōpū Mahi Tiriti 
partnered with Kaiako | Māori Language Teacher 
Joan Costello to deliver te reo Māori lessons 
to staff during work hours across the year.

Over seven months 43 classes were delivered 
to 52 staff members. Two course levels were 
available each term: Beginners and Next 
Steps. Most staff completed both courses.

From Visitor Services Hosts to Directors, our 
te reo Māori classes were made up of staff 
from teams across the organisation. Together 
staff learned how to introduce themselves 
with personalised pepeha and studied more 
complicated te reo Māori sentence structures.

The lockdown period only slightly affected 
attendance as the second course continued via 
Zoom. Wellington Museum Kaitiaki Manuhiri | 
Visitor Services Host Wiremu Chrisp continued 
to devise and deliver his own te reo lessons 
to staff for the remainder of alert level 4.

Results from our te reo Māori course suvery found: Building confidence in using the language 
and gaining a better understanding of tikanga 
Māori were often referenced in staff’s positive 
outcomes of the course.

“I found it was really good being able to 
access the learning of te reo Māori at work, 
both increasing the accessibility to the 
training but also then learning with and 
alongside my colleagues”  
- Louise Saviker

“I gained confidence to try out te reo Māori  
in a safe and inclusive environment.”  
- Marten Coombe

We look forward to building on the knowledge 
gained from this training in order to more 
effectively pursue our Te Tiriti o Waitangi 
obligations and Embrace Te Ao Māori at all 
organisational levels.

of survey takers indicated 
they want to continue taking 
te reo Māori lessons at work

85%

Our Strategic Pou: Embracing Te Ao Māori

90% of survey respondents agreed 
or strongly agreed that they 
now have more confidence in  
te reo Māori pronunciation

felt the lessons improved 
their te reo Māori vocabulary 75%

Over

indicated they are now using 
more te reo Māori at work.75%

Almost
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Ā Mātou Pou Rautaki
Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

Our Strategic Pou

We are committed to continuous improvement of our organisation effectiveness.

Experience Wellington is dedicated to innovation and excellence. We are 
leaders in the arts, culture and heritage sector with the responsibility to deliver 
meaningful experiences and employment.

By embracing change, we continuously improve our charity’s reach, 
effectiveness and environmental impact. Our robust business systems keep us 
connected and ready for challenges.

We demonstrate whanaungatanga to support our teams’ wellbeing and celebrate 
the successes of our talented and creative Experience Wellington whānau.

Michael Parekōwhai, Encounter 1, City Gallery Wellington, 2019
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Capital E Nōku Te Ao is the leading centre for creativity for young 
people in Aotearoa. With a focus on engaging tamariki and rangatahi 
to ignite and fuel their creativity; Capital E’s vision is to equip them 
to contribute as confident, connected and capable citizens with the 
skills to shape a positive future for themselves and their communities.

The reach of Capital E is huge with normally around 80,000 children 
and young people enjoying one of Capital E’s theatre shows, education 
and digital programmes, or play for under-fives each year. Capital E has 
a unique, influential role to play in the creative ecosystem of Aotearoa.

For 15 years the home of Capital E was Te Ngākau Civic Square, 
the heart of the city, until November 2012 when the building was 
discovered to be earthquake prone, and Capital E was forced to close.

While moving to Queens Wharf has provided a new home for Capital E 
close to Wellington Museum, the space is limited, and so are many of 
Capital E’s activities. 

We are exploring with Wellington City Council as to how Capital E 
might return to a revitalised Te Ngākau, potentially within a reimagined 
Central Library. 

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

PlayHQ SustainaVille Christmas at Capital E, December 2019. Photo by Mark Coote

| Capital E

Strategic Project:
Identifying a long-term home  
for Capital E Nōku Te Ao

Back to Leading the Way
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| Capital E

Capital E and the Library share clear alignment 
in their purpose and offerings. Our kaupapa has 
always been to create extraordinary experiences 
for, with, by, and between children and young 
people. 21st century libraries are spaces where 
the community can connect and engage to 
discover, innovate, create and showcase ideas: 
all strong synergies with the mahi of Capital E. 

In partnership with Council, Capital E plays a 
significant role in the city’s vibrancy, and we 
envision future Capital E activating a thriving 
Te Ngākau for our youngest citizens. With 
thousands of children and young people coming 
to experience Capital E, the centre of our city will 
buzz with the creativity and liveliness of tamariki, 
generating vitality and enriching the city we love. 

OnTV Studio at Capital E, November 2019. Photo by Mark Coote

Wear Your Imagination at Capital E, October 2019.

MediaLab at Capital E, November 2019. Photo by Mark Coote

Back to Leading the Way
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Over the last three years Experience Wellington has undertaken a 
significant review of our IT equipment and systems. To meet the needs of 
our six experiences as well as the operational functions that support our 
business, our systems needed to be fast with remote access to provide 
robust and connected services with a single user sign-on. 

The initial phase of this work included an IT hardware upgrade, move to 
a new internet provider and the installation of Office 365. The benefits 
of this investment in our equipment and systems came to light during 
Levels 4 and 3 as our teams worked from home. Office 365 meant that 
access to email, important documents and files was seamless, resulting 
in being able to operate as much as possible in a business-as-usual mode 
during this difficult time.

Salesforce has been an important addition to our toolbox with the 
Fundraising team leading the use of this CRM. Migration of valuable 
data from various systems is underway and once completed the whole 
organisation will benefit from Salesforce applications in understanding 
and reaching our audiences.

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

The focus for the next year is reviewing the ticketing and venue hire 
system options as well as introducing a cloud-based point of sale for 
our onsite and online retail operations. Acknowledging the complexity of 
the different systems that function across the business and the ongoing 
importance of keeping our systems operating and relevant, we have 
partially seconded a staff member to oversee the ongoing review and 
implementation of business systems.

Embracing the newest technology trends ensures our charity stays 
connected, creative and productive. Thank you to Tim Cassin,  
James Unwin, Delyse Diack, Erika McClintock and other team members 
who are dedicated to steering Experience Wellington into the future.

Strategic Project:
Upgrade of IT equipment and systems

Back to Leading the Way
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Wellbeing, Health & Safety
The health, safety and wellbeing of our staff has always been at the forefront 
of everything we do, and abiding by the Health and Safety at Work Act 2015, 
we recognise that a well-functioning health and safety system relies on strong 
participation and leadership. 

Our Wellbeing, Health and Safety Committee is made up of representatives 
from all Experience Wellington sites who regularly meet to discuss health and 
safety best practise, and ways to minimises harm to our staff and our visitors. 
Sharing relevant resources with staff from Ministry of Health (MoH), Worksafe, 
and Ministry of Business Innovation and Employment (MBIE) helps to keep the 
health, safety and wellness of staff top of mind.

Over the year, nine staff members completed First Aid training through 
New Zealand Red Cross. Seven staff members were trained in operating fire 
extinguishers by Capital Fire Extinguishers Ltd, and 19 staff completed the  
St John’s Mental Health First Aid course in February. 

Staff are encouraged, and supported by their managers, to report any potential 
hazards in order to eliminate risk. A total of 36 minor incidents were reported 
during the year, with a mix of near misses, accidents, and slips trips and falls 
making up most of the reports. No serious harm incidents were reported. 

In the wake of Aotearoa’s lockdown in March, the need for additional support 
in the wellbeing space was recognised, and a sub-group of the committee 

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

was set up. The group provided useful resources to staff on a regular basis 
such as mindfulness and mental health information, links to EAP services, 
light-hearted motivational material, activities to keep children entertained, 
virtual learning opportunities and webinars, along with raising awareness 
for selfcare. This additional support helped staff feel connected while 
working apart.

One of the hot favourites produced by the group was The Good Times, 
edited by Fundraising Administrator Lizzie Murray. This collaborative 
collection of good news stories and puzzles received a huge amount 
of positive feedback from staff and trustees. The “well needed ray of 
sunshine” was reportedly “much better than the doom and gloom in the 
media.” One staff member called The Good Times “an amazing team 
building initiative. I’ve felt closer to others across the Trust, and our team 
has enjoyed doing the puzzles together.”

Our Wellbeing, Health and Safety Committee work hard to develop a 
culture of acceptance and understanding, a place where our mental health 
is as important as our physical health. Safety is everyone’s responsibility, 
and we are proud to highlight the behind-the-scenes work of our 
committee. Thank you for making sure we work safe and go home safe.

Back to Leading the Way
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Environmental 
Sustainability Committee
Environmental sustainability is everyone’s 
responsibility. Executive Advisor Jo Arenhold and 
Education Engagement Advisor Hana Makin lead 
the group that ensures our charity considers the 
impact we have on our local environment.

The Environmental Sustainability Committee 
produce useful resources to keep staff updated 
with the best recycling practices for work and 
home. They make a difference by providing 
staffrooms with reusable lunchbox containers and 
making composting and soft-plastic recycling 
available across our sites. The committee also 
share sustainability facts in our weekly internal 
‘What’s On’ emails.

In June, with the help of Wellington City Council, 
our charity was awarded Toitū Carbon Zero 
certification. Close monitoring of the air 

conditioning systems at Wellington Museums 
and City Gallery was a key factor in reducing 
our electricity use.

The committee challenged Experience 
Wellington to Plastic Free July. The global 
movement encourages participants to refuse 
single use plastics and seek sustainable 
alternatives. On 4 July the committee part-
nered with Vinnie’s Re Sew to hold the second 
annual Wellington Museum Plastic Free Fair. 
The Fair featured environmentally friendly 
products, a clothes swap, a reusable bowl cover 
and snack bag workshop. A sewing-machine 
and machinist also provided help to mend 
clothes that would otherwise turn up in landfill. 
The Plastic Free Fair proved to be a great way 
to ignite sustainable living conversations and 
changes among our working whānau.

In October, the committee completed a site-
wide rubbish audit. The results gave a crucial 
insight into what we can do to reduce the 
volume of waste sent to landfill.

In response to the COVID climate Hana advised 
that “the environment benefitted hugely from 
lockdown – we’re trying to keep that momentum 
going in a positive way by promoting cycling, 
not buying unnecessary items and purchasing 
New Zealand made or second hand goods to 
reduce our carbon footprint.”

We are lucky to have such an eco-
friendly group of staff leading us 
towards a greener future.

Back to Leading the Way
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Great Big 
Waterfront  
Clean Up 2020
You can’t beat Welly on a good day - but you can play your part in keeping our city 
beautiful. In January, Wellington Museum partnered with Sustainable Coastlines to 
deliver a community clean-up project on the capital’s waterfront for the second year 
in a row.

Once again, the general public was invited to join the Great Big Waterfront Clean Up. 
Guided by experts and our staff, volunteers picked up rubbish between  
Wellington Museum and Waitangi Park. Participants made a huge impact on the 
harbour and learnt the best recycling practices. 

In just over two hours, 118 tidy kiwis collected 3,000 litres of litter. Even a whole 
coffee table was discovered washed up on the rocks!

The attendance rate increased by almost 50% over the previous year. The project 
also attracted a diverse range of people. This year’s community effort was made up 
of families, the Petone Beach Clean Up Crew, French Embassy representatives and 
tourists alike. Wellingtonians are becoming increasingly environmentally conscious, 
and have come to realise looking after our harbour goes hand-in-hand with looking 
after our heritage.

We look forward to getting our hands dirty again at the next Great Big Waterfront 
Clean Up.

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way
| Wellington Museum

Jacqueline d’Ath with a washed up coffee table at the Great Big Waterfront Clean Up 2020. Photo by Kelly O’Brien

Back to Leading the Way
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Inclusion
Group
Access is a human right, not a privilege. 
Formally known as the Accessibility Group, 
our Inclusion Group’s mission is to ensure 
everyone can comfortably enjoy the remarkable 
experiences we offer onsite, offsite and online.

Changing the group’s name was important 
for widening their objectives. No matter your 
background, disability or sexual and gender 
identity, the Inclusion Group strives to make 
our sites welcoming and safe for all.

The Inclusion Group stays up to date on the 
best accessibility practices and five members 
represent our charity in the Arts for All Wellington 
Network, run by Arts Access Aotearoa. The 

network meets to share information and 
resources to increase the access of cultural 
events and venues for underserved and 
underrepresented communities in the capital.

The group identify and limit barriers faced 
by members of the disabled community. The 
Inclusion Group’s efforts ensured the appropriate 
staff are trained in operating evacuation chairs 
across our sites. 

Last year Museums Wellington Registrar, 
Nikolas Brocklehurst, trained 11 staff members 
across Museums Wellington, Capital E and 
the Executive Office. Visitor and Commercial 
Services Manager and Inclusion Group 
representative Erika McClintock reported 

11 permanent City Gallery hosts are currently 
trained in operating the equipment.

In recognition of World AIDS Day in December, the 
Inclusion Group hosted a successful Red Friday 
fundraiser for the New Zealand AIDS Foundation. 
Red velvet cupcakes and other baked goods were 
sold to staff to help end HIV stigma in Aotearoa. 
Beating their $100 target, the group managed to 
donate $152.39 to NZAF.

The Inclusive Group embraces what 
make us different and continually 
seeks opportunities to enhance the 
accessibility of our experiences.

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way
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Our talented and committed staff are integral 
to our charity’s success. We are proud to 
recognise the remarkable mahi and passion 
from the teams we are so lucky to work with.

In March, Experience Wellington celebrated 
last year’s achievements in style at Dockside 
Restaurant and Bar. Staff enthusiastically 
committed to the glamourous ‘Roaring Twenties’ 
theme, dressing in sequins, suits and feather 
boas. Attendees partied like Gatsby and 
danced the Charleston to the live jazz band. 
Trustee Peter Jackson noted it was the best 
and most fashionable staff awards yet.

Structured by our Strategic Pou, the 
awards acknowledged staff, teams or 
projects that reflect our core values.

Ngā Paraihe Kaimahi
Experience Wellington Staff Awards 2019

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

Cal Roberts, Lizzie Murray, Louise Saviker, Marta Ordejon-Mateos and Jo Arenhold

Back to Leading the WayBack to Leading the Way
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Changing Lives Award
We are proud to recognise staff dedicated 
to deepening audience engagement 
and developing new audiences for our 
remarkable experiences and stories.

Award Recipients
City Gallery Wellington Public Programmes 
Team, Tracey Monastra and Rachel Fox with 
Chief Curator, Robert Leonard. 
For the public programmes accompanying 
Eavesdropping.

Capital E Live team (and wider Capital E) 
For Story Studio Live 2019 exploring children’s 
perspective on biculturalism in Aotearoa. 

Marianne Taylor Creative Producer and the 
Live and Business & Development Teams of 
Capital E 
For bringing thousands to the 2019 Capital E 
National Arts Festival for Children.

Rachel Fox, Public Programmes Coordinator,  
City Gallery Wellington 
For commitment to producing content for 
under-represented audiences.

Suffrage in Stitches Project Team (led by 
Rachel Ingram and David Waller) 
For the delivering the community focussed 
textile exhibition.

L: Experience Wellington Trustee Diane Calvert and Changing Lives Award recipients 
Kelly Kiwha and Ruth Love
C: Experience Wellington Trustee Diane Calvert and Changing Lives Award recipients 
Rachel Ingram and David Waller
R: Experience Wellington Trustee Peter Jackson and Embracing Te Ao Māori Award 
recipient Wiremu Chrisp

Embracing Te Ao Māori
Acknowledging tangata whenua as kaitiaki and 
Te Tiriti o Waitangi is crucial to Experience 
Wellington. Recipients embed te ao Māori in 
their ways of working and what our audiences 
see feel and experience. 

Award Recipients
Wiremu Chrisp 
For leadership, patience and encouragement of 
colleagues starting on their journey to Embrace 
Te Ao Māori.

Museums Wellington 
For commitment to partnering with mana 
whenua in the development of Wellington 
Museum and The Navigators.

Back to Leading the Way
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Leading the Way
We are established leaders in the arts and 
culture sector. These recipients lead the way 
with whanaungatanga and innovation.

Award Recipients
Annie Mercer 
For her can-do attitude and commitment to 
whanaungatanga.

Ideatorium/Capital E Marketing and  
Programming Teams 
For the innovative new pathway for artists 
to submit ideas across creative streams.

Values Champion Awards
Our Values Champion are recognised for their 
commitment to one or more of our core values: 
Connected, Boldness, Quality First and Leading.

Award Recipients
Connected 
These recipients deepened engagement 
with the communities we serve.

Jo Arenhold with Ella Quivooy & Kate Van Arts  
For developing the Self-Guided Walking tour map 
connecting all six Experience Wellington sites.

Boldness 
We are proud to highlight those who use 
innovation and creativity to achieve the best for 
our city.

City Gallery Educators: Claire Hopkins  
and Helen Lloyd 
For bringing artists and schools together.

Leading 
We value our high performing culture and 
recognise those who help our charity flourish.

Delyse Diack 
For leadership displaying professionalism, 
empathy and commitment to doing the best for 
staff and audiences.

Quality First 
Recipients perform at high standard and make a 
real difference to Wellington City.

Kathiy Watson 
For excellence in venue delivery.

All four Values Champions 2019  
Connected, Boldness, Leading, Quality First 
Two recipients modelled all four Experience 
Wellington values: 
Marta Ordejon-Mateos 
Simon Jones

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

L: Experience Wellington Trustee Rachel Farrant, with Leading the Way Award 
recipients Melissa Conway, Karen Carey and Delyse Diack
C: Experience Wellington Trustee Rachel Farrant with Leading the Way Award 
recipient Annie Mercer
R: Experience Wellington Chief Executive Pat Stuart with Values Champion 
Award recipient Kathiy Watson

Back to Leading the Way

Experience Wellington 19/20  55 Experience Wellington 19/2055



Staff
Achievements

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

Our organisation is made up of incredibly talented individuals, and 
we relish the opportunity to share their successes. We celebrate 
the work of our staff as artists, directors, musicians, performers, 
writers and producers, and the creative lens they then bring to 
their work at Experience Wellington.

We are grateful that working in a creative sector attracts creative 
people, and below you will find a selection of our most celebrated.

Dr Sarah Rusholme 
Chief Executive
Our new Chief Executive is currently in her second year of her 
NZCER Teaching & Learning Research Initiative research project. 
As the co-lead investigator alongside Dr Andrea Milligan of 
Victoria University of Wellington, Sarah, Andrea plus a team of 
teachers and informal educators are investigating how visits to 
cultural institutions equip tamariki and rangatahi to be active 
participants in their communities. Their project was represented at 
the New Zealand Social Science Conference in October 2019. Last 
year’s SocCon theme was Turangawaewae (A Sense of Place).

Sarah Rusholme and family amongst the Capital E team

Back to Leading the Way
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Philip Cristian Claassen 
Venue and Events Coordinator, Museums Wellington
Outside of Museums Wellington, Philip Cristian Claassen is an award-winning 
screenplay writer and published author. 

Philip wrote the screenplay for the incredibly successful short film Tommy. 
The Melbourne film has been entered into 17 international film circuits, 
circuits, including the prestigious Hollywood Film Festival in Los Angeles. 
Tommy has won 12 awards including Best Film and Best Screenplay at 
Romania’s Long Story Shorts International Film Festival, Best Screenplay at 
the Core International Film Festival in Boston and the latest award for Best 
Cinematography at the ARFF International Film Festival in Paris. Philip’s film 
has also been nominated for Best Australian Film along with Best Australian 

Actor (Stephen Degenaro) and Best Australian Actress (Simone Ball). His 
short film Degree of Separation is being used as a training video for Social 
Workers of Domestic Violence in Australia and has gained distribution rights 
in Hollywood.

Philip made another literary achievement amidst the worldwide travel 
restrictions with his recently published book Your Comprehensive Guide to 
New Zealand. With an impressive 600 page count, this book has been in the 
works since 2010.

Philip has several projects currently in development including two short films, 
(Millie vs and Today), one feature film (Isla’s Song) and a second travel guide 
(New Zealand for Free).

Stills from Philip’s film Tommy

Back to Leading the Way
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Haritina Mogosanu 
Senior Science Communicator, Museums Wellington
Haritina Mogosanu shares her vast knowledge of space in and outside 
of work. Hari volunteers for Space Science Communication and runs a 
charitable trust called the New Zealand Astrobiology Network. She an 
Executive Committee member for the Society for Science Communicators  
of New Zealand (SCANZ).

In February 2020 Hari spoke at the Australian Planetarium Association in 
Melbourne. She was also a finalist for the education category of the 2019 
NEXT magazine’s Woman of the Year Awards.

Anton Carter 
Deputy Director, Museums Wellington
Anton Carter was selected as an artist for the New Zealand delegation of the 
Festival of Pacific Arts and Culture 2020. The Festival is currently postponed 
but will showcase some of the best Māori and Pacific art in Aotearoa.

Anton is a DJ and mixes music with spoken word. For the festival, Anton is 
sampling old pacific records and creating lyrics inspired by Pacific regions 
and oceans.

L: Haritina (second from the left back row) and the Finalists for the NEXT Woman of the Year awards in 2019. Photo by NEXT magazine
R: “Hands up, who’s having a good time?” MC Antsman at Toast Martinbourgh

Back to Leading the Way
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Amber Baldock 
Exhibitions Manager, City Gallery
Amber Baldock also attended the 3rd 2019 Venice Biennale.  
Creative New Zealand selected Amber as the Exhibition Co-ordinator 
for the New Zealand Pavilion.

Our Strategic Pou: Leading the Way

R: Exhibition view: Dane Mitchell, Post hoc, 58th Venice Biennale (11 May–24 November 2019). Courtesy the artist and Mossman, Wellington. Photo: David Straight
L: Abby with her Life Coach qualification

Abby Rainbow 
Education Bookings Coordinator, Capital E
Abby Rainbow recently became a qualified Life Coach through 
the ‘Beautiful You Life Coaching Academy’. She possesses a 
wealth of knowledge in wellness and offers essential advice to her 
clients and Experience Wellington’s Wellbeing Committee.

Back to Leading the Way
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Pippa Drakeford 
Production Manager, Public Programmes, Capital E
Pippa Drakeford showcases her comedic and musical talents in various live 
performances. Pippa performed in the award-winning show How to Write 
an Album in 12 Hours in the New Zealand Fringe Festival, the Auckland 
Fringe Festival show, the Hutt Winter Festival 2019, and PANNZ. Pippa was 
also awarded ‘Maestro’ at the NZ Theatresports competition in 2019.

L: How to Write an Album in 12 Hours performing at the Hutt Winter Festival. Photo by Masanori Udagawa. Pippa’s headshot photo by Tabitha Arthur
R: Actor, Sepelini Mua’au reading out a letter to his younger self in LEGEND, at TAHI: New Zealand Festival of Solo Performance. Photo by Roctorio Photography

Beth Taylor 
Associate Producer – Live, Capital E 
Capital E’s talented Associate Producer-Live, Beth Taylor, also works 
as a producer for the company Act of Kindness, which was awarded 
‘Promising Emerging Company’, and nominated for ‘Outstanding Ensemble 
Performance’ for their show Legend at the NZ Fringe Festival 2020. 

Beth also produced TAHI: New Zealand Festival of Solo Performance 
which won ‘Best Newcomer’ at the 2019 Wellington Theatre Awards.

Back to Leading the Way
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Robert Leonard 
Chief Curator, City Gallery
Robert Leonard writes on contemporary art 
for a range of publications. His essay ‘Sincere 
Disconnect’ appeared in Christchurch Art 
Gallery’s 2019 catalogue Brent Harris: Towards 
the Swamp. This year, Australian art magazine 
Vault featured his essays on Stuart Ringholt, 
Peter Peryer and Zac Langdon-Pole. His essay 
on Colin McCahon’s Numerals is on the McCahon 
100 website. He also writes regularly for his own 
website. 

Chartwell Trust and several philanthropists 
have funded Robert’s forthcoming book on 
New Zealand art critic Giovanni Intra. It will 
be copublished by Los Angeles publisher 
Semiotext(e) and Robert’s new imprint Bouncy 
Castle. Robert was also awarded an arts 
practitioner grant from the Asia New Zealand 
Foundation. Once borders open, he will travel 
across Asia for curatorial research.

Aaron Lister 
Curator, City Gallery
Aaron Lister is a talented art writer. Aaron has 
written for Contemporary Hum, a platform 
dedicated to documenting Aotearoa projects 
overseas. Its website features Aaron’s recent 
interview with artist Yona Lee. Aaron also recently 
contributed to News from the Sun, a City Gallery 
Wellington and Bad News Books publication.

A collection of Aaron’s works feature 
on his own website, including his essay 
“Women in the Window: Joan Bennett, 
Cindy Sherman, Casa Susanna”.

Moya Lawson 
Assistant Curator, City Gallery
Moya Lawson is a board member of play_station, 
a Wellington artist-run initiative. Last year Moya 
helped facilitate Elisabeth Pointon’s project  
FOR THE LAST TIME WOULD YOU LOOK 
AT THAT through the initiative. Pointon’s 
OUTSTANDING banner was displayed at Hobart 
Tasmania’s Hobienniale but was unable to fly as 
intended due to the Australian bush fires. The 
banner trilogy was shown at City Gallery and 
OUTSTANDING was flown over Wellington in July.

Creative New Zealand selected Moya as one 
of six attendants for Dane Mitchell’s Post hoc 
exhibition for the Biennale Arte 2019 in Venice.

Back to Leading the Way
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Visitor Services Hosts
Our visitor services hosts are also a seriously talented bunch. Many of  
City Gallery’s front of house team practice their art and curation after hours. 

Gina Matchitt was awarded the 2019 Blumhardt Curatorial internship at the 
Dowse. Ana Iti is currently an artist in residence at McCahon House.

Auckland Art Gallery featured Sorawit Songsataya’s sculpture installation 

The Interior. Sorawit was also recently announced as an artist in residence  
at Govett-Brewster. 

Robbie Motion’s paintings were showcased at the iconic Wellington vintage 
shop Hunters & Gatherers in January 2015. 

Simon Attwooll’s screenprints series Sometimes a bad experience is better 
than a long explanation was exhibited at Suite Gallery in November 2019.

Elisabeth Pointon: What Goes Up., City Gallery Wellington, 2019. Photo by Mark Tantrum

Back to Leading the Way
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Back to Business Sustainability

Governance Report

He Rīpoata Kāwanatanga
Governance Report

Experience Wellington is governed by a Trust Deed between  
Wellington City Council and Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated. 
The Deed was first executed on 18 October 1995 and updated on 
15 August 2007.

Te Mana Whakahaere Governance

Trustees Date Appointed
Number of  

Meetings Attended
Jackie Lloyd (Chair) 1 July 2011 9

Diane Calvert (Councillor) 1 Nov 2016 7

Rachel Farrant 1 July 2013 8

Jane Wrightson 1 Jan 2016 9

Peter Jackson 1 June 2019 8

Peter Johnston 1 June 2019 9

Our Board of Trustees are appointed by Council and are standard-
bearers for Experience Wellington’s vision. They are responsible for 
setting the strategic direction and approving the Statement of Intent 
and the Strategic Plan. The Board monitors organisational performance, 
the organisation’s ongoing viability and the maintenance of its 
competitiveness. It delegates the day-to-day operation of Experience 
Wellington to the Chief Executive, who reports to the Board. 

The Board meet no fewer than nine times per year and operate three 
committees which review relevant matters prior to consideration by the 
full Board. These are the Audit and Risk (A&R) Committee; the People, 
Performance, and Safety (PPS) Committee; and the Chief Executive 
Performance and Remuneration (CEP&R) Committee. In addition, 
the Board will convene ad hoc working groups to consider specific 
issues. Guidance in specialist areas is also provided as appropriate. 

As part of its health and safety due diligence the Board undertake regular 
health and safety observations, and annually dedicate one Board meeting to 
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Te Komiti Whakahaere  
Board Committees 
 
Audit and Risk (A&R) Committee assists the Board in carrying out its duties 
in regard to financial reporting, risk management and legislative compliance. 

Chief Executive Performance and Remuneration (CEP&R) 
Committee advises the Chair in connection with the 
performance and remuneration of the Chief Executive. 

People, Performance and Safety (PPS) Committee provides guidance 
and support to the Chief Executive in a Human Resources context and 
assists the Board to meet its due diligence responsibilities regarding 
Experience Wellington’s compliance with Health and Safety legislation.

Governance Report

visiting sites where meetings are not regularly held. The Board also monitor 
health and safety through the PPS Committee and via regular Board reports 
from management. 

The Board is committed to the highest standard of corporate governance, 
overseeing reporting, and meeting best practice standards. The Board 
undertake an annual self-review, including a review of individual Trustees and 
the Chair’s performance.

Story Studio LIVE 2019 at Te Papa. Photo by Neil Price

Suffrage in Stitches at Wellington Museum

Ronnie van Hout: Quasi City Gallery Wellington 2019 

Back to Business Sustainability
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Partners & Supporters

Ngā Pou Whirinaki
Partners & Supporters

Many thanks to our Principal Funder Wellington City Council. 

To deliver our public and education programmes, engage with the community, 
expand our collections or showcase quality theatre we rely on the generous 
support of individuals, organisations, trusts and foundations. With your help our 
doors are open to all – enabling inclusion, learning, creativity and connectedness 
that uplifts, enhances health and wellbeing and generates vitality.

principal funder

Heroes and Villians workshop at Capital E

Back to Business Sustainability
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Auckland Art Gallery Toi o Tamaki 

Avalon TV Studios 

Budget Rental Cars 

Carter Observatory Trust

Chartwell Trust 

Community Trust South 

Connect New Zealand 

Creative Victoria

Department of Conservation

Eastern & Central Community Trust 

EightyOne

Interislander 

Liquid Architecture 

Lottery Grants Board  

Lottery Grants Board Heritage 
and Environment 

Maritime Friends of Wellington

Mark Tantrum

Mayhemsound Ltd

Melbourne Law School 

Ministry for Culture & Heritage

Ministry of Education 

MJF Lighting 

New Zealand Institute of Architects

NZME 

Otago Community Trust

Qin Foundation 

Radio Active

Radio New Zealand

Rātā Foundation 

Seresin Estate 

Spencer Levine Design

Taranaki Whānui ki Te Upoko o te Ika

Te Whare Hēra Wellington  
International Artist Residency

The Fletcher Trust 

The Lion Foundation  

The Stout Trust 

Thomas George Macarthy Trust 

TSB Community Trust 

Tuatara Breweries 

Victoria University of Wellington, 
Museum & Heritage Studies

Wellington Astronomical Society

Wellington Historical & Early 
Settlers’ Association

Wellington City Council Public Art Fund

Wellington Community Trust 

Wellington Sculpture Trust 

WellingtonNZ 

With our thanks

Partners & Supporters

Back to Business Sustainability
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Business Sustainability
Key Results

Key Results

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: $2,825,000 of  

non-Council revenue.
$2,157,000 of non-Council 

revenue is achieved.
Achieved: $2,741,000 of non-

Council revenue.

City Gallery Wellington $363,000 $296,000 $235,000

Museums Wellington10 $1,056,000 $837,000 $808,000

Capital E11 $608,000 $252,000 $297,000

Space Place $570,000 $566,000 $469,000

Sub Total $2,597,000 $1,951,000 $1,808,000

Sub-letting, Interest & Other $228,000 $206,000 $932,000

9 Trading revenue includes admissions, retail, venue hire, sub-letting and interest
10 Museums Wellington includes Wellington Museum, Cable Car Museum and Nairn Street Cottage. It excludes Space Place which is reported separately.
11 Capital E’s Non-Council Revenue figure includes the Hannah Playhouse.
12 Fundraising includes donations, sponsorships, other grants and cultural grants (CNZ & MoE for LEOTC).

Trading Revenue9

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual Notes
Achieved: $1,480,000 of  

non-Council revenue.
$1,701,000 of non-Council 

revenue is achieved.
Not Achieved: $932,000 
of non-Council revenue.

A number of projects scheduled 
for FY2019-20 were postponed 
due to COVID-19 restrictions 
and have been rolled over 
into the FY2020-21.

City Gallery Wellington $467,000 $574,000 $165,000

Museums Wellington $148,000 $158,000 $152,000

Capital E $784,000 $858,000 $534,000

Space Place $81,000 $111,000 $81,000

Fundraising12

Back to Business Sustainability
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Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Not Achieved: $3.37 was the 

average spend per visitor.
The average spend  
per visitor is $2.93

Achieved: $3.38 was the 
average spend per visitor

City Gallery Wellington $2.36 $1.87 $2.11

Museums Wellington13 $2.49 $2.16 $2.75

Capital E14 $4.43 $3.29 $3.42

Space Place $10.25 $9.93 $10.79

Spend per Visitor

Key Results

13 + 15 Museums Wellington includes Wellington Museum, Cable Car Museum and Nairn Street Cottage. It excludes Space Place which is reported separately.
14 + 16 Capital E’s Spend per Visitor figure includes the Hannah Playhouse.

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: $9.77 was the 

average subsidy per visit.
The average subsidy  

per visit is $11.24
Not Achieved: $14.55 was the 

average subsidy per visit.

City Gallery Wellington $15.65 $14.96 $22.07

Museums Wellington15 $3.89 $5.01 $7.25

Capital E16 $12.20 $23.35 $21.74

Space Place $8.87 $9.48 $12.63

Operating Subsidy per Visit

Measure 2018/2019 Actual 2019/2020 Target 2019/2020 Actual
Achieved: $12.16 was the 

average subsidy per visit.
The average subsidy  

per visit is $19.64
Not Achieved: $20.00 was the 

average subsidy per visit.

City Gallery Wellington $19.20 $16.06 $24.20

Museums Wellington $4.48 $7.41 $10.49

Capital E $12.20 $27.50 $23.25

Space Place $18.97 $10.64 $20.60

Full Subsidy per Visit incl. of Council Ownership Costs

Back to Business Sustainability
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In our opinion:

 — the financial statements of the Trust on pages 74 to 93,

• present fairly, in all material respects: 

 - its financial position as at 30 June 2020; and

 - its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended; and

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand 
in accordance with Public Benefit Entity Accounting Standards 
applying the reduced disclosure regime; and

 — the performance information of the Trust on pages 35 to 37 presents 
fairly, in all material respects, the Trust’s actual performance compared 
against the performance targets and other measures by which 
performance was judged in relation to the Trust’s objectives for the year 
ended 30 June 2020. 

Our audit was completed on 12 August 2020. This is the date at which our 
opinion is expressed.

To the readers of Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated’s Financial 
Statements and Performance Information for the year ended 30 June 2020

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated 
(the Trust). The Auditor-General has appointed me, Sonia Isaac using the staff 
and resources of KPMG, to carry out the audit of the financial statements and 
performance information of the Trust on his behalf. 

Opinion 
We have audited:

 — the financial statements of the Trust on pages 74 to 93, that comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of 
comprehensive revenue and expense, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes 
to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other 
explanatory information; and

 — the performance information of the Trust on pages 35 to 37.

Te Rīpoata Kaitātari
Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Back to Business Sustainability
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The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the 
responsibilities of the Board of Trustees and our responsibilities relating to 
the financial statements and the performance information, and we explain our 
independence.

Emphasis of matter – Covid-19 
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to the disclosures about 
the impact of COVID-19 on the Trust set out on page 82 (Availability of 
Future Funding) of the financial statements and page 35 (Key Results 
Indicators) of the performance information. 

Basis for our opinion
We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards, which incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and 
the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New 
Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor 
section of our report. 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General’s 
Auditing Standards.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees for the financial 
statements and the performance information
The Board of Trustees are responsible on behalf of the Trust for preparing 
financial statements that are fairly presented and that comply with generally 

Independent Auditor’s Report

accepted accounting practice in New Zealand. The Board of Trustees also 
responsible for preparing the performance information for the Trust.

The Board of Trustees are responsible for such internal control as it 
determines is necessary to enable it to prepare financial statements and 
performance information that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements and the performance information, 
the Board of Trustees are responsible on behalf of the Trust for assessing 
the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of Trustees 
are also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Board 
of Trustees intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Trustees’ responsibilities arise from the Local Government  
Act 2002. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the 
financial statements and the performance information
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements and the performance information, as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit carried out in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, 
and can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the decisions of readers, taken on the basis of these financial 
statements and the performance information. 

For the budget information reported in the financial statements and the 
performance information, our procedures were limited to checking that the 
information agreed to the Trust’s statement of intent.

We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication 
of the financial statements and the performance information.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing 
Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. Also:

 — We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements and the performance information, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, 
or the override of internal control. 

 — We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Trust’s internal control.

 — We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
the Board of Trustees. 

 — We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported performance 

information within the Trust’s framework for reporting its performance.

 — We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern 
basis of accounting by the Board of Trustees and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements and the performance 
information or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Trust to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 — We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements and the performance information, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements and the performance 
information represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Trustees regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Other Information
The Board of Trustees is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but 
does not include the financial statements and the performance information, 
and our auditor’s report thereon. 
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Independence
We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the independence 
requirements of the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate 
the independence requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1: 
International Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the  
New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board of Trustees. 

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with, or interests in, the Trust. 

 

Sonia Isaac  
KPMG 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Wellington, New Zealand

Our opinion on the financial statements and the performance information 
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of audit 
opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements and the performance 
information, our responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, 
we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements and the performance information or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ngā Tauākī Pūtea
Financial Statements

Financials
74

Kerrie Poliness Blue Wall Drawing 1 2007-19

Experience Wellington 19/20  74



Back to Financial Statements

Financial Statements

Statement of 
Financial Position

For the year ended  
30 June 2020
In New Zealand Dollars

Note 2020 Actual 2020 Forecast 2019 Actual
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 7  2,120,232 2,153,000 2,265,890

Collection and artefacts 8 2,338,816 2,339,000 2,338,816

Intangible assets 9 63,754 8,000 47,998

Endowment Fund with Nikau Foundation 12 259,528 - 252,208

Total non-current assets 4,782,330 4,500,000 4,904,912

Current Assets

Inventories 195,443 150,000 182,912

Trade and other receivables 10 497,022 600,000 639,414

Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,553,485 830,000 1,082,238

Total current assets 2,245,950 1,580,000 1,904,564

Total assets 7,028,280 6,080,000 6,809,476

EQUITY

Reserves 12 2,568,043 2,601,000 2,560,723

Retained earnings 12 1,877,801 1,858,000 1,928,876

Total equity 4,445,844 4,459,000 4,489,599

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Employee benefits 13 59,638 50,000 66,846

Total non-current liabilities 59,638 50,000 66,846

 Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 14 2,102,046 1,321,000 1,869,444

Employee benefits 13 420,752 250,000 383,587

Total current liabilities 2,522,798 1,571,000 2,253,031

Total liabilities 2,582,436 1,621,000 2,319,877

Total equity and liabilities 7,028,280 6,080,000 6,809,476
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Financial Statements

Statement of 
Comprehensive 
Revenue and 
Expense

For the year ended  
30 June 2020
In New Zealand Dollars

Note 2020 Actual 2020 Forecast 2019 Actual
Revenue

Revenue 4 13,219,444 13,362,000 13,551,415

Total Revenue 13,219,444 13,362,000 13,551,415

Operating expenses

Personnel expenses 6 (6,823,249) (6,233,000) (6,217,378)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 7, 9 (523,225) (550,000) (479,507)

Other operating expenses 5 (5,948,909) (6,632,000) (6,893,365)

Total operating expenses (13,295,383) (13,415,000) (13,590,250)

Operating surplus/(deficit) 
before finance income

(75,939) (53,000) (38,835)

Finance income

Finance income 24,864 42,000 50,648

Endowment fund earnings 3,267 5,618

Net finance income 28,131 42,000 56,266

Surplus/(Deficit) for the period (47,808) (11,000) 17,431

Endowment fund revaluation 4,053 - 11,590

Other comprehensive revenue and expense 4,053 - 11,590

Total comprehensive income for the period (43,755) (11,000) 29,021

Statement of 
Changes in Equity

For the year ended  
30 June 2020
In New Zealand Dollars

Note 2020 Actual 2020 Forecast 2019 Actual
Balance at 1 July 2019 12 4,489,599 4,470,000 4,460,578

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the period (43,755) (11,000) 29,021

Total comprehensive income for the period (43,755) (11,000) 29,021

Transferred to Reserve - - -

Balance at 30 June 2020 12 4,445,844 4,459,000 4,489,599
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Financial Statements

Statement of  
Cash Flows

For the year ended  
30 June 2020
In New Zealand Dollars

Note 2020 Actual 2020 Forecast 2019 Actual
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Receipts from customers 4,147,132 2,946,000 4,647,606

Receipts from related parties 9,563,374 9,251,000 9,524,239

13,710,506 12,197,000 14,171,845

Cash was applied to:

Payments to suppliers and employees (11,346,940) (9,780,000) (11,817,330)

Payments to related parties (1,442,476) (1,769,000) (1,257,083)

Net GST received/(paid) (34,139) (140,000) (24,452)

(12,823,555) (11,689,000) (13,098,865)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 18 886,951 508,000 1,072,980

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 24,864 42,000 50,648

Cash was applied to:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (440,568) (550,000) (750,521)

Endowment Fund - (235,000)

Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities (415,704) (508,000) (934,873)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

- - -

Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities - - -

Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash 
and cash equivalents

471,247 - 138,107

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  
of the period

1,082,238 830,000 944,131

Cash and cash equivalents at 
the end of the period

11 1,553,485 830,000 1,082,238

Back to Financial Statements

Experience Wellington 19/20  77 Experience Wellington 19/2077



Ngā Whakamārama 
Tauākī Pūtea
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financials
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Significant Accounting Policies

1. Reporting Entity
The Wellington Museums Trust Incorporated, 
now trading as Experience Wellington, is a 
registered charity under the Charities Act 2005 
and domiciled in New Zealand. It is a Wellington 
City Council (Council) Controlled Organisation 
(CCO) in terms of the Local Government Act 2002.

The financial statements of Experience Wellington 
include the activities of the following business 
units: the Wellington Museums Trust;  
Wellington Museum; City Gallery Wellington; 
Capital E; Nairn Street Cottage; Cable Car 
Museum; and Space Place at Carter Observatory.

The main activity of Experience Wellington is to 
manage and develop cultural institutions and 
to operate them for the benefit of the residents 
of Wellington and the public generally. 

The financial statements of Experience Wellington 
are for the year ended 30 June 2020. The financial 
statements were authorised for issue by Trustees  
on 12 August 2020.

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. Basis of Preparation
a. Statement of Compliance and 
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared 
in accordance with Tier 2 Public Benefit Entity 
Standards. Experience Wellington is a public 
sector entity and is listed in Schedule 2 of the 
Public Audit Act 2001. The criteria under which 
Experience Wellington is eligible to report in 
accordance with Tier 2 PBE Standards are that it 
is not publicly accountable and is not large and 
disclosure concessions have been applied. Certain 
comparative figures have been represented to 
correspond with current year’s presentation.

b. Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the 
historical cost basis except for donations into the 
Endowment Fund which is recorded at fair value.

c. Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented 
in New Zealand dollars ($).

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have 
been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these financial statements.

a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment 
are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

i. Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are added to the carrying 
amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment when that cost is incurred if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential embodied with the item 
will flow to Experience Wellington and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
All other costs are recognised in surplus/ 
(deficit) as an expense as incurred.

Back to Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ii. Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to surplus/ (deficit) 
using the straight line method. Depreciation 
is set at rates that will write off the cost or 
fair value of the assets, less their estimated 
residual values, over their useful lives. The 
estimated useful lives of major classes of 
assets and resulting rates are as follows:

— Computer & AV equipment  
— Office and equipment  
— Motor vehicles 
— Building Fittings 
— Exhibitions 
— Collections & artefacts

The residual value of assets is reassessed annually.

b. Collections and Artefacts

Collections are artefacts that are of cultural or 
historical importance. A substantial amount of 
the Collections were acquired on 29 February 
1996 from the Wellington Maritime Museum Trust 
(WMMT) with others added either as gifts or 

purchases since 1996. Collections are carried at 
historic cost as assessed at the time of transfer 
from the WMMT. All subsequent acquisitions to 
the collections are recorded at cost if purchased. 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-
exchange transaction, its cost is measured 
at its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
Where the fair value of the assets is not able 
to be reliably measured, they are recorded at 
nil. Because the useful life of the collections 
is indeterminate, they are not depreciated. 

An external valuation of the Collections 
from an independent valuer is obtained on 
a periodic basis to ensure that the carrying 
value of the Collections that are held at 
cost does not exceed their fair value.

Trustees obtained a valuation at 30 June 
2014 and have confirmed that the carrying 
value at 30 June 2020 is appropriate and 
that no impairment has occurred.

33% SL 
25% SL 
20% SL 
5-25% SL 
10% SL 
Not depreciated

c. Intangible Assets

Computer Software

Software applications that are acquired by 
Experience Wellington are stated at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised in surplus/ (deficit) on 
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of intangible assets, from the date that they are 
available for use. The estimated useful lives for the 
current and comparative periods are as follows:

— Computer software 

d. Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured 
at their cost less impairment losses.

e. Inventories

Inventories (merchandise) are stated at the lower 
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable 
value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

33% SL
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle 
and includes expenditure incurred in 
acquiring the inventories and bringing them 
to their existing location and condition. 

f. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise 
cash balances and call deposits. 

g. Impairment

The carrying amounts of Experience Wellington’s 
assets other than inventories are reviewed at each 
balance date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, the assets recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount 
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 
its recoverable service amount. The recoverable 
service amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use is determined using an approach 
based on either a depreciated replacement 

cost approach, restoration cost approach, 
or a service units approach. The most 
appropriate approach used to measure 
value in use depends on the nature of the 
impairment and availability of information.

If an asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable service amount, the asset is regarded 
as impaired and the carrying amount is written-
down to the recoverable amount. The total 
impairment loss is recognised in the surplus 
or deficit. The reversal of an impairment loss 
is also recognised in the surplus or deficit.

h. Employee Benefits

Long Service Leave

Experience Wellington’s net obligation in respect 
of long service leave is the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return 
for their service in the current and prior periods. 
The obligation is calculated using the projected 
unit credit method and is discounted to its 
present value. The discount rate is the market 

yield on relevant New Zealand government bonds 
at the Statement of Financial Position date.

i. Provisions

A provision is recognised when Experience 
Wellington has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event, and 
it is probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. If the effect is material, provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market rates and, where 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

j. Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at cost.

k. Revenue

i. Funding

The trading activities of Experience Wellington 
are supported by grants and sponsorship. 
Grants received that have an obligation in 
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Notes to the Financial Statements

substance to return the funds if conditions of 
the grant are not met are initially recognised 
as a liability and revenue is recognised only 
when the services are performed or conditions 
fulfilled. Funds that have no such obligation 
attached, and merely a restriction imposed 
on the use of the funds, are recognised as 
revenue when they become available.

ii. Services Provided

Revenue from services rendered is recognised 
in proportion to the stage of completion of 
the transaction at the reporting date. Income 
is recognised as the service is provided (e.g. 
exhibition run). Where exhibitions are not 
scheduled to run until the following fiscal year, 
revenue is deferred and amortised to income 
throughout the period of the exhibition. 

iii. Donations

Cash donations from the community are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income at the point at which they are 
receipted into the Trust’s bank account.

iv. Sale of Merchandise

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is 
recognised when the significant risks and 
rewards of ownership have been transferred 
to the buyer. No revenue is recognised if there 
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery 
of the consideration due, associated costs 
or the possible return of the merchandise, 
or where there is continuing management 
involvement with the merchandise.

l. Expenses

i. Operating Lease Payments

Payments made under operating leases 
are recognised in surplus/ (deficit) on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received are recognised in 
surplus/ (deficit) over the lease term as an 
integral part of the total lease expense.

ii. Finance Income and Expenses

Finance income comprises interest income. 
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, 
using the effective interest method. 

Finance expenses comprise interest 
expense on borrowings. All borrowing 
costs are recognised in surplus/ (deficit) 
using the effective interest method.

Endowment Fund

The Endowment Fund is categorised as a 
financial asset designated at fair value through 
other comprehensive revenue and expense. 
After initial recognition, the Endowment Fund 
is measured at fair value, with gains and losses 
recognised in other comprehensive revenue and 
expense, except for impairment losses, which 
are recognised in the surplus or deficit. When 
sold, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in other comprehensive revenue and 
expense is transferred to the surplus or deficit. 

Availability of Future Funding

Experience Wellington is reliant on the Council 
for a large part of its income and operates under 
a Funding Deed with the Council. The Funding 
Deed was for a period of three years and is 
extended annually for a further year subsequent 
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to the initial 3 year term. Funding from the Council 
has been approved for the year ended 30 June 
2021. In addition, due to the forecast impact 
of COVID-19 on future visitation and revenue, 
the Council have provided a Letter of Comfort 
regarding funding for any shortfall that may arise.

The Council has agreed to fund $430,494.96 
(plus GST) being the current proportion of rental 
subsidy previously allocated to the Capital E 
building rental, for use by Experience Wellington 
for Capital E’s interim accommodation.

If Experience Wellington was unable to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future, 
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the 
fact that assets may need to be realised other than 
at the amounts stated in the balance sheet.  

In addition, Experience Wellington may have to 
provide for further liabilities that might arise, and 
to reclassify property, plant and equipment as 
current assets.

m. Income tax

Experience Wellington is registered as a Charitable 
Trust and is exempt from income tax. Experience 
Wellington is not exempt from indirect tax 
legislation such as Goods and Services Tax, 
Fringe Benefit Tax, PAYE or ACC and accordingly 
it is required to comply with these regulations.

n. Goods and services tax

All amounts are shown exclusive of Goods and 
Services Tax (GST), except for receivables and 
payables that are stated inclusive of GST.

o. Statement of Intent Forecast 
Financial Statements

Forecast Financial Statements are approved by 
the Board of Trustees and issued as part of the 
annual Statement of Intent. The Forecast Financial 
Statements are prepared in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New 
Zealand (NZ GAAP), using accounting policies 
that are consistent with those used in preparing 
these Financial Statements. The Forecast Financial 
Statements are not audited. The Forecast for 
the 2019-20 financial period is included in the 
Financial Statements. 
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4. Revenue and Other 
Operating Income

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2020 2019
Revenue from exchange transactions

Retail Sales 936,845 1,199,572

Admissions income 528,128 927,953

Facility hire 335,292 469,037

Sub-lease income 40,875 73,910

Other income 51,859 129,273

1,892,999 2,799,745

Revenue from non-exchange transactions   

Wellington City Council operational grant 7,530,880 7,341,217

Wellington City Council rental grant 1,796,098 1,768,980

Wellington City Council underwrite 19/20 259,988 187,574

Ministry of Education contracts for service 219,594 323,170

Creative New Zealand contracts for service 254,766 455,000

Other grants, sponsorship & donations 468,477 675,729

Government Wage Subsidy 796,642 -

11,326,445 10,751,670

Total revenue 13,219,444 13,551,415
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5. Other Operating 
Expenses

Notes to the Financial Statements

2020 2019
Cost of sales 599,746 644,356

Exhibitions & programmes 1,696,137 2,355,665

Rent paid 1,871,196 1,826,257

Marketing & promotions 441,076 661,820

Occupancy costs (excluding rent) 607,003 680,300

Other administration expenses 195,474 200,055

Communication costs 123,821 156,522

Trustee fees & expenses 95,030 84,078

Technology costs 193,254 182,686

Professional fees 61,998 66,736

Provision for Bad Debts 28,074 -

Auditors’ remuneration audit fee 36,100 34,890

5,948,909 6,893,365

6. Personnel Expenses 2020 2019
Wages and salaries 6,823,249 6,217,378

6,823,249 6,217,378
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7. Property, Plant 
and Equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements

Computer 
equipment

Office & 
equipment

Motor 
vehicles

Building 
fittings

Work in 
Progress

Exhibitions Total

Balance at 30 June 2020

Cost 948,288 1,501,591 23,730 2,501,087 874,931 1,363,906 7,213,533

Accumulated depreciation 730,467 1,473,866 23,730 2,249,935 - 615,303 5,093,301

Carrying value 217,821 27,725 - 251,152 874,931 748,603 2,120,232

Current year depreciation 187,083 17,864 - 155,124 - 137,991 498,062

  

Balance at 30 June 2019  

Cost 874,501 1,499,756 23,730 2,482,239 616,998 1,363,906 6,861,130

Accumulated depreciation 543,384 1,456,002 23,730 2,094,811 - 477,313 4,595,240

Carrying value 331,117 43,754 - 387,428 616,998 886,593 2,265,890

Current year depreciation 161,184 15,453 - 154,287 - 137,991 468,915

Work in progress includes $521,778 related to 
the planned earthquake strengthening and 
upgrade of the Wellington Museum which 
is owned by the Wellington City Council (a 
related party). The Council has allocated $10 
million in its 2018-28 Long-Term Plan for this 
project in the years 2020-21 and 2021-22 and 
on confirmation of this project these costs 
would be reimbursed to Experience Wellington 
and absorbed within the project budget.

8. Collections & Artefacts 2020 2019
Opening balance 2,338,816 2,338,816

Additions - -

Disposals - -

Closing balance 2,338,816 2,338,816

9. Intangible Assets 2020 2019
Cost 280,940 240,020

Accumulated amortisation 217,186 192,022

Carrying value 63,754 47,998

Current year amortisation 25,163 10,592
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10. Trade and Other 
Receivables

2020 2019
Accounts receivable 289,089 254,062

Receivables from related parties - 192,564

Prepayments 32,585 27,336

GST receivable 175,348 165,452

497,022 639,414

11. Cash & Other 
Equivalents

2020 2019
Bank balances 1,342,586 253,934

Call deposits 210,899 828,304

1,553,485 1,082,238
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12. Equity and Reserves
Reconciliation of Movement in Equity and Reserves

Capital Reserve Capital E
Endowment 

Fund
Nairn St Cottage 

Collection
Wellington 

Museum
Retained 
Earnings

Total Equity

Balance at 1 July 2019 2,122,961 44,630 252,208 23,895 117,029 1,928,876 4,489,599

 Surplus/(Deficit) for period - - 3,267 - - (51,075) (47,808)

Endowment fund revaluation - 4,053 - - 4,053

Balance at 30 June 2020 2,122,961 44,630 259,528 23,895 117,029 1,877,801 4,445,844

      

Balance at 1 July 2018 2,122,961 44,630 235,000 23,895 102,700 1,931,192 4,460,578

Surplus / (Deficit) for the period - - 5,618 - - 11,813 17,431

 Endowment fund revaluation - 11,590 - - 11,590

Transferred to Wellington 
Museum Collection

- -  - - 14,129 (14,129) -

Balance at 30 June 2019 2,122,961 44,630 252,208 23,895 117,029 1,928,876 4,489,599

Capital Reserve

The Capital Reserve was established on 29 
February 1996 on the transfer from the Wellington 
Maritime Museums Trust of their collection 
and artefacts, cash and other sundry office 
equipment of the Wellington Maritime Museum.

Nairn Street Cottage Reserve (formerly the 
Colonial Cottage Museum) Collection Reserve

During the year ended 30 June 2003 The Colonial 
Cottage Friends Society wound up the society 
and donated the remaining funds ($11,948) to 

the Experience Wellington for the purpose of 
establishing a collection fund for the Colonial 
Cottage Museum now known as the Nairn 
Street Cottage. Experience Wellington agreed to 
transfer this and a similar amount to the fund.

Wellington Museum (formerly the Museum of 
Wellington City & Sea) Collection Reserve

During the year ended 30 June 2005 the Trustees 
decided to place all donations received from 
the Poneke History Club membership into a 
collection reserve for future museum acquisitions. 

 

Endowment Fund

In 2019 the Trustees decided to place the 
proceeds from the Sir Alexander Grant bequest 
into an endowment fund managed by Nikau 
Foundation. The future return on this fund 
is to be used to support programming and 
the development of museum and art gallery 
assets managed by Experience Wellington.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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13. Employee Benefits 2020 2019
Current

Payroll accruals 162,647 125,155

Liability for holiday pay 258,105 258,432

 420,752 383,587

Non-current  

Liability for long-service leave 59,638 66,846

59,638 66,846

480,390 450,433

Notes to the Financial Statements

14. Trade and 
Other Payables

2020 2019
Trade payables 348,246 418,173

Payables to related parties 126,134 128,673

Funds held and Revenue in advance 1,478,603 1,121,424

ACC premiums 5,661 5,661

GST Payable - -

Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 143,402 195,913

2,102,046 1,869,844

2020 2019
Less than one year 1,261,707 1,584,112

Between one and five years 2,480,588 2,352,668

More than five years - -

3,742,295 3,936,779

Operating Leases 
Leases as Lessee

Non-cancellable operating lease 
rentals are payable as follows:
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14. Trade and Other Payables (continued)
Experience Wellington holds leases on property, 
office equipment and motor vehicles.

Two of the property leases are for Council 
owned buildings – Wellington Museum on 
Queens Wharf and City Gallery Wellington on 
Te Ngākau Civic Square. Under the Funding 
Deed between Experience Wellington and 
the Council, rental payable to Council under 
these leases is covered by a rental subsidy. 

Since 1 September 2013 Experience Wellington 
has leased premises for the operation of Capital 
E and by agreement with Council, the cost of 
these leases is covered by the rental subsidy.

Other property leases are held by  
Experience Wellington for storage of Collections 
and the operation of the Executive office.

15. Capital Commitments
As at 30 June 2020, there are no 
capital commitments (2019: $nil), which 
have not been accounted for.

16. Contingencies
There are no material contingent 
liabilities at balance date (2019: $nil).

Notes to the Financial Statements
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17. Reconciliation of Operating Surplus to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

2020 2019
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) for the Year (47,808) 17,431

Adjustments:
Add Non-Cash Items:

Depreciation and amortisation expense 523,215 479,507

Movements in Working Capital:

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets 129,861 21,235

(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Creditors 272,639 101,878

(Decrease)/Increase in Accruals and Provisions 37,175 509,195

Investing Income (28,131) (56,266)

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 886,951 1,072,980

18. Related parties
i. Identity of related parties

Experience Wellington is not related to the Council 
by shareholding. It was established by, and is 
reliant upon, the Council for a large part of its 
income which indicates sufficient reliance on the 
Council, by Experience Wellington, for a related 
party relationship to exist. Additionally, the Council 
consolidates the financial results of Experience 
Wellington for its own reporting purposes. 

Experience Wellington operates under a  
Funding Deed with the Council which requires 
delivery of services in accordance with the 
provisions of the Trust Deed, the Funding Deed 
and the Statement of Intent, agreed with Council 
on an annual basis.

The Funding Deed was for a period of three 
years and is extended annually for a further 
year subsequent to the initial 3-year term. The 
rental grant is paid back to the Council as rent on 
properties owned by the Council and occupied by 
Wellington Museum and City Gallery Wellington.

In the case of Capital E which no longer occupies a 
Council owned building the rental grant is used to 
meet Capital E’s accommodation costs.

Experience Wellington purchased accounting 
services during the year totalling $8,952 (2019: 
$5,560) from an accounting firm, of which one 
Trustee is a partner.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18. Related parties (continued)
ii. Related party transactions

During the year, Experience Wellington entered into related party transactions of the following nature:

Transaction value year ended Balance outstanding as at 30 June
2020 2019 2020 2019

Receipts

Wellington City Council - operational grant 7,530,880 7,341,217 - -

Wellington City Council - rental grant 1,796,098 1,768,980 - -

Wellington City Council – The Attic project - - - -

Wellington City Council - miscellaneous 236,396 67,674 - 192,564

Total receipts 9,563,374 9,177,871 - 192,564

 

Payments

Wellington City Council - rental 1,338,485 1,338,485 - -

Wellington City Council – The Attic Project - - - -

Wellington City Council - miscellaneous 103,991 98,431 126,134 128,673

Total payments 1,442,476 1,436,916 126,134 128,673

iii. Remuneration of key management personnel

Executive officers’ remuneration is included in “personnel” expenses (see note 6).

2020 2019
Trustees 95,030 84,078

Executive officers 933,950 896,379

1,028,980 980,457
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19. Space Place at Carter Observatory
Experience Wellington governs, manages and 
controls Space Place at Carter Observatory for 
Council under a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU), as if it were an institution under 
the Trust Deed but subject to and with the 
benefit of the MOU. Under this agreement the 
Council has agreed to reimburse Experience 
Wellington for any deficit incurred through the 
operations of Space Place. Therefore, Experience 
Wellington has recognised the operations of 
Space Place in the financial statements.

20. Hannah Playhouse

Experience Wellington operates the Hannah 
Playhouse as part of the Capital E business 
unit for the owners, which are the Hannah 
Playhouse Trust and the Wellington City Council 
(Council), under a Management Agreement 
which was first executed on 25 February 2016 
and extended to 30 June 2020. Under the 
agreement, Experience Wellington operates the 
Hannah Playhouse as a theatre for performing 
arts with the benefit of Council underwriting 
the operating budget up to $85,000 for the 
financial year 2019-20. Experience Wellington 
gave notice to the owners of Hannah Playhouse 
that it would not be extending this Agreement 
beyond 30 June 2020 and subsequently all ties 
to the Hannah Playhouse have been severed.

21. Subsequent Event

There have been no significant events 
after balance date that have affected the 
accuracy of these financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Executive Office

Level 8, AMI Plaza, 342 Lambton Quay  
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 471 0919 
E: experience@experiencewellington.org.nz

experiencewellington.org.nz 

City Gallery Wellington Te Whare Toi

Te Ngākau Civic Square 
101 Wakefield Street 
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 913 9032 
E: citygallery@experiencewellington.org.nz 

citygallery.org.nz

Capital E Nōku te Ao

4 Queens Wharf 
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 913 3740 
E: capitale@experiencewellington.org.nz 

capitale.org.nz

New Zealand Cricket Museum  
Ngā Taonga Kirikiti

The Old Grandstand, Basin Reserve 
PO Box 578, Wellington 
P: 04 385 6602 
E: cricket@experiencewellington.org.nz

nzcricketmuseum.co.nz 

Note: The New Zealand Cricket Museum is currently 

closed and is expected to re-open in October 2020.

Plimmer’s Ark Galleries

Old Bank Arcade (timbers in situ)

Wellington Museum  
Te Waka Huia o Ngā Taonga Tuku Iho

The Bond Store, Queens Wharf 
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 472 8904  
E: museumswellington@experiencewellington.org.nz

museumswellington.org.nz/wellington-museum

Space Place Te Ara a Whānui Ki Te Rangi

Botanic Gardens 
PO Box 893, Wellington    
P: 04 910 3140 
E: spaceplace@experiencewellington.org.nz 

museumswellington.org.nz/space-place 

Cable Car Museum

1 Upland Road 
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 475 3578 
E: cablecar@experiencewellington.org.nz

museumswellington.org.nz/cable-car-museum

Nairn Street Cottage

68 Nairn Street 
PO Box 893, Wellington 
P: 04 384 9122 
E: cottage@experiencewellington.org.nz 

museumswellington.org.nz/nairn-street-cottage

Te Papatohu
Directory
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He waka eke noa.
A waka we are all in together.


